dh

Associated
International Hotels Limited
SRR E AR A F)

Stock Code BR#HE: 105

IDING
"T1TO A

" NEW

1 HORIZON



www.isquare.hk



B &%
Contents

02
03
06
07
17
30

35
37
38
40

41
44
115

NEEH
TEHREE
MIRBE
ERERRE

E=EW

Iff
I

EPNC
BAZHARE
FEBER
BEESEX
REEEEBR

B
i

FERERER
B ER R MIRE
REPHRE

Corporate Information

Chairman’s Statement

Properties

Corporate Governance Report

Report of the Directors

Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management

Independent Auditor’s Report

Consolidated Income Statement

Balance Sheets

Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Notes to the Financial Statements

Five Year Financial Summary




AREH

Corporate Information

EER
HITES
SIS (L))
EEM(BEE)
EHRIe

FHITES
/B IR

2IFER
BIFHITES
AEE

=5

=M

NEME
REF

1T

BERTERRAA
E/RIT
BELBESYRITERAA

REm

AL ITRIG

B (R H 1T

BE (DI
BB Em
EEHEHAFHH
BREZRZE

BEAPREBESEZLARAT
BEEFERANEBER183H
AR LTEATI26E

AR EE

BEEEHE 21235
BfEE 50602 E

A uh

http://aihl.etnet.com.hk

Board of Directors
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Non-executive Directors
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Yau Allen Lee-nam
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Ng Sau Fong
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Hang Seng Bank Limited
Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Solicitors

JSM
Deacons
Stephenson Harwood & Lo

Auditors
KPMG
Share Registrars

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-6, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Registered Office

Room 502, Euro Trade Centre
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Website

http://aihl.etnet.com.hk

02  Associated International Hotels Limited SlEtEIBEIEE R A A



ITRMES

Chairman’s Statement

R EE

AABRENMAEEHE_ZZTALE=A
T —RALEFEZREZEE RAFE -
AEE &2 EE RS %210,000,000 7T -
mE—BBRFEERSREREERNBE
448,3000007C * ZBIEF ERREVEMLEE
1874 #180,900,000 7T FT 21+ ifn £ — BF B 5F /2 B
G I E W) ¥ L B & 7 % ¥ 455,000,000 7T © &
HEBBEREFEREEE S L& EF S
BiE MIACHHBASREEXNTE - WikE
MEGBEEETRIGEETN  BE_TTNF
A=+ BUEMBEE  FEEZELEEER
%ﬁ%%%mmwﬁ'ﬁL*%ﬁEFmF
LEIB A4 BB 6,800,000t EEEEFIA

N B3 TR AN 8 B A 0 B 4 1
T 45 R -
EHOEN M REAZFT®

HEZZZNF=ZA=+-HULEFHEE &
£ B 7 3B RABRES S — Austin Hills Golf Resort
#) 5 ZBE 18 A B #56,000,0007T » A FE 2D E
WA BB ¥17,3000007T R E—BBFET
2k 4978 2,100,000 7T °

A EE R F B WA AT 10,500,000 T 0 8K £
— B B E R #9785 512,100,000 7T o F B
ASBEZRF R TR -

Financial Results

I ' would like to report the audited results of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2009. During the year, the Group recorded a loss from operations
of HK$210.0 million, compared with a profit from operations of HK$448.3 million
for the previous financial year. The loss was mainly attributable to the
valuation losses on investment properties of HK$180.9 million, compared
with the valuation gains on investment properties of HK$455.0 million in the
previous financial year. Such valuation losses will only affect the accounting
profit or loss but not the cash flow of the Group. Excluding the valuation
losses on investment properties, the Group recorded a loss from operations
for the financial year ended 31 March 2009 of approximately HK$29.1 million
as compared with the loss from operations of approximately HK$6.8 million
in the previous financial year. It was mainly due to a steep reduction in
interest income plus advertising and marketing expenses incurred for

iISQUARE during the year.

Business Review and Commentary on
Financial Results

Austin Hills Golf Resort, the Group’s golf and recreational club operation,
suffered a segment loss of HK$6.0 million for the financial year ended
31 March 2009. Segment revenue for the said year was HK$17.3 million,
representing a decrease of approximately HK$2.1 million compared with the

previous financial year.

Interest income amounted to HK$10.5 million, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$12.1 million compared with the previous financial year.
The steep reduction in interest income was mainly due to a decrease in

interest rates.
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Capital Structure and Liquidity

The total equity for the Group at 31 March 2009 was HK$5,160.7 million,
compared with HK$5,373.5 million at 31 March 2008. As announced on
20 October 2006, the Company has entered into a facility agreement with a
bank comprising of a 5-year term loan facility of up to HK$1 billion and a
5-year revolving credit facility of up to HK$200 million. The Company has an
option to extend the facilities for two additional years, subject to, among
other things, the agreement of the lending bank. At 31 March 2009, the
banking facilities were utilised to the extent of HK$568 million and the
Group’s gearing ratio was 11.0% (calculated as total bank loan over total

equity).

Outlook

The development of ISQUARE on the site located at No. 63 Nathan Road,
Kowloon (Kowloon Inland Lot No. 7425) owned by the Company has
entered its final stage. The superstructure was topped out in February 2009.
Internal and external finishing works are now in progress. The occupation
permit is anticipated to be obtained in the third quarter of this year. Barring
unforeseen circumstances, the entire project is expected to be completed
before December 2009, targeting to open for business by the end of 2009.
The present estimated cost of construction for this project is around

HK$1.3 billion and this will be mainly financed by external borrowings.

The global financial turmoil has had a profound impact on the economy and
such impact has affected the leasing market in Hong Kong. The
management expects the operating environment to be challenging. However,
given its location and quality of construction, the Directors believe that, over

time, ISQUARE should become a popular shopping centre.

Contingent Liabilities

Details of the Group’s contingent liabilities are set out in note 28 to the

financial statements.
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Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting of shareholders of the Company will be held on
Wednesday, 9 September 2009.

Dividend

The Board has resolved that in view of the cessation of the main business of
the Group which was the operation of a hotel and the hotel’s shopping
arcade, no final dividend will be paid to shareholders (2008: HK$NIil). As no
interim dividend was paid during the year, there will be no dividend paid for
the entire year (2008: HK$NIl). The register of members of the Company will
be closed for the purpose of determining the identity of members who are
entitled to attend and vote at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting from
Thursday, 3 September 2009 to Wednesday, 9 September 2009, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. All
transfers must be lodged with the Company’s share registrars not later than
4:30 pm on Wednesday, 2 September 2009.

Staff

At 31 March 2009, the total number of employees of the Group was 117.

In addition to salaries, medical and retirement benefits, the Group pays
discretionary bonuses to its staff. Sponsorships for necessary outside
training courses are also provided by the Group to its staff.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | wish to thank all our staff for their devotion
and dedication in the past year.

Cheong Hooi Hong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 9 July 2009
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iISQUARE

This commercial complex will house a number of retail, entertainment, food
and beverage establishments. It is well located in the heart of Tsim Sha Tsui

and easily accessible.

The superstructure was topped out in February 2009. Internal and external
finishing works are now in progress. Barring unforeseen circumstances, the
entire project is expected to be completed before December 2009, targeting

to open for business by the end of 2009.

Austin Hills Golf Resort

This golf resort is in the city of Johor Bahru, Malaysia. There are three 9-hole
golf courses. Other entertainment facilities include tennis courts, a driving
range, a games room, pool tables, 8-lane bowling alleys, a lounge/karaoke
and a swimming pool. There are also 66 suites and food and beverage

establishments.
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company recognises its responsibilities to shareholders and is therefore
committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance. To
accomplish this, the Company has reviewed its practices and procedure,

and identified and formalised appropriate measures.

Subsequent to 1 January 2009, the Company has carried out a review on
the compliance with the code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (“CG Code”) in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Listing Rules”). Except for the roles of chairman and chief executive officer
that were not separated and performed by two individuals, being inconsistent
with code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the Company, throughout the
year ended 31 March 2009, complied with all the code provisions in the CG

Code which were then in force.

In respect of the deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code,
Mr Cheong Hooi Hong is both the Chairman and chief executive officer of
the Company. The Board of Directors considers that the current structure
does not have any adverse effect on the Company and believes that this
structure enables the Group to make and implement decisions promptly and

efficiently.
Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its
code for dealing in securities in the Company by its directors (“Model Code”).
Specific enquiry has been made with all directors of the Company of any
non-compliance with the Model Code, and all directors have confirmed
compliance with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the

year ended 31 March 2009.
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Board of Directors

The Board of Directors during the year ended 31 March 2009 comprised the

following directors:

Executive Directors

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman)

Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman)
Mr Cheong Keng Hooi

Mr Cheong Sim Lam

Miss Cheong Chong Ling

Non-executive Directors
Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles
Mr Lau Wah Sum

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul

Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam

Mr Lee Chung

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (who is both the Chairman and chief executive officer
of the Company), Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, Mr Cheong Keng Hooi and
Mr Cheong Sim Lam are brothers. Miss Cheong Chong Ling is the daughter
of Mr Cheong Kheng Lim and the niece of Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong,
Cheong Keng Hooi and Cheong Sim Lam. Some of the directors who are

members of the Cheong family own business outside the Group together.

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Group. It
formulates objectives, overall strategies and business plans and oversees
the financial and management performance of the Group. For efficient
operation, certain functions and authorities are delegated to the
management, which include implementation of objectives, strategies and
plans adopted by the Board and the day-to-day management of the Group’s

business.
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Board of Directors (continued)

The directors of the Company are responsible for preparation of the financial
statements for each financial period which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows of the Group.
In preparing the financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2009 on a going concern basis, the directors have adopted
suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently with those applied
to the financial statements of the previous financial year. The directors have

also made judgements and estimates which are reasonable.

The directors of the Company are accountable for keeping proper records
which reflect with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the Group. The statement of the Auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out

in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 35 to 36.
Six board meetings, of which four were regular board meetings, were held

during the year ended 31 March 2009. Individual attendance of the directors

is set out below:

HESBERE FERHEERRE

! Directors Meetings attended/Eligible to attend
HITEE Executive Directors

EREESLE (EE) Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman) 6/6
BB E (FEE) Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman) 6/6
42 M 0 5T A Mr Cheong Keng Hooi 4/6
EEF S E Mr Cheong Sim Lam 6/6
EIEIS/MA Miss Cheong Chong Ling 6/6
FMITEE Non-executive Directors

MR R S Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 6/6
BIEREE Mr Lau Wah Sum 6/6
BIIFHNITEF Independent Non-executive Directors

AEEEE Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 6/6
k=B kg Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 5/6
£V Mr Lee Chung 6/6

Annual Report 08-09 &£ 09



AN A A
fi= 'EH/I:I#E(%

Corporate Governance Report

FUTESNBEUFAITES

FHMITEETWZENFHA—F - MBI
TEFHRZENFHUSRRAFASHEE
EEBT -RZBEREAFAGHGL - REA
REIMABERMAA - FRTEFTMEILIEH
TEEHRAB=_FRIHBAERT R ¥ZF
E=TEREBE-

ARBERENEBIIFFATESTAANRAE L
BREBIME (R LT R R E3A3 AT E Y
MR YRSEBLIFNTES
BEBIAL - EF - RWIUATEEHEA
EHRAIZRABHNEENEXRERIEE W
SR RARENMBEEER -

= 5 #r

AEBEHFMEENZKBNZAERF I H
M<AABETRENESTMBEIRET Rt &
EFEERIUFMER S - RAKEHFHBED
ME MEEFHEBEAL T2 EEHH
BB RIRE -

Non-executive Directors and
Independent Non-executive Directors

The non-executive directors are appointed for a term of one year whilst
independent non-executive directors are appointed for the period
commencing from the conclusion of one annual general meeting to the
conclusion of the following annual general meeting. According to the
Company’s Articles of Association, they are required to retire by rotation, but

eligible for re-election, at least once every three years.

The Company has received confirmation from each independent non-
executive director about his independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and considers each of them to be independent. One of the
independent non-executive directors possesses appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise as

required under the Listing Rules.

Remuneration of Directors

The primary objective of the Group’s remuneration policy is to retain directors
and staff of suitable calibre by remunerating them at competitive level. In
order to achieve this, the Board has established a remuneration committee.
Under the Group’s remuneration policy, no director or his associates is

allowed to be involved in decisions relating to his own remuneration.
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Remuneration of Directors (continued)

The remuneration committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors and two non-executive directors. The members are Mr Chow Wan
Hoi, Paul (committee chairman), Mr Lau Wah Sum, Mr Sin Cho Chiu,
Charles, Mr Lee Chung and Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam. The main duties of the
remuneration committee are to assist the Company in formulating
remuneration policy and structure for directors and senior management; to
determine the remuneration packages for all executive directors and senior
management; to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
for non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors; to
review and approve performance-based remuneration; to review and
approve compensation payable to executive directors and senior
management in connection with any loss or termination of their office or
appointment; and to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct. Details of the
remuneration committee’s authority and duties are set out in the terms of
reference. The said terms of reference are published on the Company’s
website and are also available upon written request to the company

secretary.

Remuneration for executive directors and senior management is determined
by the remuneration committee on the recommendations of the chief
executive officer (except Mr Cheong Hooi Hong whose remuneration
package is determined by the remuneration committee without
recommendation of or reference to the chief executive officer) on an annual
basis. The remuneration committee also makes recommendations to the
Board on the review of remuneration for non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors annually. For all other staff, it is the
executive directors who fix their remuneration packages on the

recommendations of their respective department heads on an annual basis.
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Remuneration of Directors (continued)

The amount of remuneration payable to the directors is determined by
reference to a number of factors, including remuneration paid by comparable
companies, the Group’s results as well as the work-load, responsibility and
time commitment of the directors. When determining the remuneration
packages for senior management and all other staff, the remuneration
committee and executive directors, as the case may be, take(s) into
consideration the factors including market condition, the Group’s results,

individual performance, job nature and duties.

Other than the retirement scheme as set out in note 26 to the financial
statements on page 111, the Group does not have any long-term incentive

scheme.

During the year ended 31 March 2009, the remuneration committee held
two meetings, at which, the committee reviewed and made
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration policy and
structure; considered and fixed the remuneration packages for executive
directors and senior management; made recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration for both the non-executive directors and independent non-
executive directors; and considered and recommended the Board on the
terms and conditions of the service contract between the Company and one

of the executive directors.

EFHEZEeRELEeR a8 T The attendance record of each remuneration committee member is set out
below:

HEEBAY BEXREESI R

RE Members Meetings attended/Eligible to attend
EFEE(ZTEEFE) Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul (committee chairman) 2/2
BIZER ST A Mr Lau Wah Sum 2/2
HEE R Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 2/2
hEBiE Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 2/2
TEE Mr Lee Chung 2/2
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Nomination of Directors

The Company does not have a nomination committee as the role and

function of such committee are currently performed by the Board.

As regards nomination of directors, the Board is responsible for the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of directors. For appointment of a
new director, the Board considers not only the skills and experience of the
candidate, but also his/her value to the Company, so as to ensure that there
is a balanced composition of the Board. The process for re-election of a
director is pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, which requires
that (i) every director should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years and a retiring director shall be eligible for re-election; and
(iiy directors who are appointed by the Board as an addition to the Board
shall retire at the next annual general meeting whilst those appointed to fill
casual vacancies shall retire at the next general meeting (instead of the next
annual general meeting) and directors so appointed are eligible for

re-election.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2009, the Board made
recommendations and provided biographical details to shareholders of the
Company on directors standing for re-election. The Chairman from time to
time reviewed the composition of the Board with particular regard to the
number of independent non-executive directors. The Board also reviewed

and determined the suitability and terms for re-appointment of directors.
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EEREEB @ Nomination of Directors (continued)

EEE_ETZNF=A=1T—"BLFERMEA Among the six board meetings held during the year ended 31 March 2009,

FAMAXREETEEERT MACHZHEENET two of the meetings covered issues in relation to re-appointment of directors.
EEEWH REFHEZMAEETE TR ZNX Individual attendance of the directors at the said two board meetings is set
E /g (1N out below:

HESBERE FERHEERRE

) Directors Meetings attended/Eligible to attend
HITEF Executive Directors
BREE LA (EFFE) Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman) 2/2
BB E (FEE) Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman) 2/2
§5 I 0 ST A Mr Cheong Keng Hooi 2/2
SEEAF S E Mr Cheong Sim Lam 2/2
EIRE /N A Miss Cheong Chong Ling 2/2
FIHITEFE Non-executive Directors
AR RE S Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 2/2
RIFERTE Mr Lau Wah Sum 2/2
BIIFHNITEF Independent Non-executive Directors
ESRgEE Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 2/2
hEFEFBEE Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 2/2
EX Mr Lee Chung 2/2
2 E BT € Auditors’ Remuneration
REBEE-ZZEZNF=ZA=+—HLEFE £&Q During the year ended 31 March 2009, the Auditors of the Company, KPMG,

AIZHA — E5HEAMEBRASEIR provided audit services of a value of approximately HK$537,000 to the
(B E 478 ¥ 537,000 7T B 7% B RIS M EE L Group. KPMG also provided non-audit services of a value of approximately
B #E267,0007C Z FERZBURTS - IERBURBE A HK$267,000 to the Group, which included HK$113,000 and HK$145,000
BIE D B A 7S 113,000 7T F1 7% # 145,000 7T B being charges for tax services and interim review respectively.

i 7% AR 75 A rp AR E5 B AR 75 o
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Audit Committee

The primary responsibilities of the audit committee of the Company are to
make recommendations to the Board on appointment, re-appointment and
removal of external auditors; to approve remuneration and terms of
engagement, and handle all issues relating to resignation or dismissal in
respect of external auditors; to review and monitor the external auditors’
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process; to
discuss with the external auditors on the nature and scope of audit and
reporting obligations before commencement of audit; to develop and
implement policy on engagement of external auditors to supply non-audit
services; to oversee financial reporting system and internal control procedure
and to review financial information of the Group. Details of the audit
committee’s authority and duties are set out in the terms of reference. The
said terms of reference are published on the Company’s website and are

also available upon written request to the company secretary.

The audit committee comprises three independent non-executive directors
and two non-executive directors. The members are Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul
(committee chairman), Mr Lau Wah Sum, Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles, Mr Lee

Chung and Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam.

During the year ended 31 March 2009, the audit committee met four times,
at which the audit committee made recommendations to the Board on the
re-appointment of the external auditors, considered and approved the
remuneration of the external auditors; reviewed the half-year and annual
financial statements of the Group, including integrity and significant financial
reporting judgements contained therein, before submission to the Board for
approval; discussed with the external auditors the nature and scope of the
audit and scope and extent of interim review before commencement of
annual audit and interim review in respect of the Group respectively; ensured
that the Company had complied with its policy on engagement of external
auditors to supply non-audit services to the Group; reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system and met the external

auditors without the presence of executive board members of the Company.
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BREE o (48) Audit Committee (continued)
EEZLTEeKRELF SR 2EHENOT The attendance record of each audit committee member is set out below:
HESBAY FEEEESRAH
24 Members Meetings attended/Eligible to attend
EREE(ZEEFE) Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul (committee chairman) 4/4
BIERTE Mr Lau Wah Sum 4/4
PR ST A Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 4/4
SR E Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 3/4
=S Mr Lee Chung 4/4
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%fﬁ%ﬂEf?%%&%&ﬁiﬁ%ﬂ$@ﬂ@’f¥ﬁﬁ§i
MEMME  WRAEEEN  MIFRHEHE
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Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the Company’s internal control system and
reviewing its effectiveness. Procedure and systems are in place to safeguard
assets against unauthorised use or disposition; to maintain proper
accounting records and to ensure accuracy of financial information and
compliance with applicable statutes, rules and regulations. Defined roles,
responsibilities and reporting lines have been established. However, these
procedure and systems are designed to minimise and mitigate the risk of
failure in operation and achievement of the Company’s objectives and can
only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against errors, losses or

fraud.

The Board has, with the assistance of the audit committee of the Company,
conducted a review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control of
the Group for the year ended 31 March 2009. The review covered all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls, and risk
management functions. Based on the result of the review, the Board
considers that the resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget are adequate. The Board is not aware of any
significant areas of concern which has to be brought to the attention of the

shareholders.
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The Directors submit herewith their annual report together with the audited

financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2009.

Principal Place of Business

Associated International Hotels Limited (the “Company”) is a company
incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office and
principal place of business at Room 502, Euro Trade Centre, 21-23 Des

Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Company are property investment and
investment holding. The principal activities and other particulars of the

subsidiaries are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of the
operations of the Company and its subsidiaries during the financial year is

set out in note 3 to the financial statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the five largest suppliers and five largest customers of the
Group accounted for less than 30% by value of the Group’s total purchases

and sales respectively.

Financial Statements

The loss of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2009 and the state of the
Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in the financial

statements on pages 37 to 114.
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BAGEE Transfer to Reserves

WMAMBRREMNBRERGEEBEEB A A Loss attributable to shareholders, before dividends, of HK$174,882,000
17488200 e ( Z E T )\ F : % H A B 1 (2008: profits of HK$399,436,000) have been transferred to reserves. Other
399,436,000 T ) B B AREE - EENEMmE movements in reserves are set out in note 24 to the financial statements.
FEIE 5 B B T TR BT E24 o

ERASBEORIEEFZTER — BEMEE The Board has resolved that in view of the cessation of the main business of
EIGREIE  EESERBETRERGKRE T the Group which was the operation of a hotel and the hotel’s shopping
R (ZZEZNGE )  c HFRARTRANEE arcade, no final dividend will be paid to shareholders (2008: HK$NIil). As no
RAEREPHKRE Bt 2 FHEREAMER interim dividend was paid during the year, there will be no dividend paid for

B(ZZTZENF &) - the entire year (2008: HK$Nil).
BEBM Charitable Donations

REBPNARFE AR ZEE 1B A 1,0050007T Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to HK$1,005,000

(ZZT)\F : BHES50007T) o (2008: HK$5,000).
EEE Fixed Assets
EEAEMEBHFHBINERTHRRMME12- Movements in fixed assets are set out in note 12 to the financial statements.
REBMIREMENT The investment properties of the Group are as follows:
BHiEPY % Property under redevelopment
SCE
it B sTEAE  HEFH EREE EHRFH HEEE BEEE SEER
Expected
Intended Term Stage of year of Gross Group’s
Location use of lease completion  completion Site area floor area interest
BEIBEAT=% [EES i E rETR 20094F 4,044 53,048 100%
(JUBE A3 R 74255 ) AT K FK
63 Nathan Road, Kowloon Commercial Medium Superstructure 2009 4,044sgm 53,048 sgm 100%
(Kowloon Inland Lot No. 7425) construction
in progress
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FET¥KNE

HNABA - —BABAMK
R L2~ L3N LA E (L
NEBELDHRE-—BZTRR
(ByE R ER 2258 )

Good Luck Industrial Building

Unit A on the Ground and 1st Floor,

and Car Parking Spaces Nos.

L1,L2, L3 &L4 onthe Ground Floor,

105 How Ming Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon
(Kwun Tong Inland Lot No. 22)

PTD 58065 to 58149 and PTD 58151,

Mukim of Tebrau, Johor Bahru, Johor,

Malaysia

Fixed Assets (continued)

Properties held for leasing and capital appreciation

REAR HEFH
Existing use Term of lease
T RIFEM 5
Workshops and Medium

car parking spaces

RETE KA
Undetermined Freehold
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Directors

The Directors during the financial year were:

Executive Directors

Cheong Hooi Hong
Cheong Kheng Lim
Cheong Keng Hooi
Cheong Sim Lam
Cheong Chong Ling

Non-executive Directors

Sin Cho Chiu, Charles
Lau Wah Sum

Independent Non-executive Directors

Chow Wan Hoi, Paul
Yau Allen Lee-nam

Lee Chung

In accordance with articles 103, 104 and 109 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Sim Lam and Lau Wah
Sum shall retire from the board by rotation at the forthcoming annual general

meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
Directors’ Service Contracts

The executive directors (except Miss Cheong Chong Ling) were appointed to
their respective executive offices in the Company for an initial period of two
years effective on 1 January 1986 and their appointments continue after the
said period unless and until either party gives to the other three months’

notice in writing.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not determinable by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of

compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.
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Interests and Short Positions of Directors and
Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures

As at 31 March 2009, the directors and chief executives of the Company
and their associates had the following interests in the shares of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”):

(@ A7 (@ The Company
BREEEBITEERRE
Number of ordinary shares of HK$1 each
HE#1T
EnfEs R 13 48 B
PN XEER D ER B WEDL
Total % of total
Personal Family Corporate beneficial issued
i Name interests interests interests interests shares
ERIE Cheong Hooi Hong 2,073,992 - - 2,073,992 0.58%
42 I8 AR Cheong Kheng Lim 26,089,715 34,000 — 26,123,715 7.26%
E M Cheong Keng Hooi 15,275,839 275,280 — 15,551,119 4.32%
EL4L T Cheong Sim Lam 1,807,155 24,000 - 1,831,155 0.51%
B Cheong Chong Ling 588,000 — - 588,000 0.16%
LB ER Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 242,000 — 120,000 362,000 0.10%
() (Note)

e AREFETHI120000 BB EAR DR FAFEN
120,000 % & 3@ A% o B IR 5 5B - B8 BR 5L A1
RAEREBLZERGOOER -

Note: The corporate interests of 120,000 shares represent 120,000 ordinary shares
held by Chason Limited where Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles is taken to be
interested in such shares under the SFO.
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EENEESTHRAEEENI Interests and Short Positions of Directors and
- BEERM AN EEFW#EZR  Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares
BRE @) and Debentures continued)
(b) Austin Hills Country Resort Bhd. (b) Austin Hills Country Resort Bhd.
SREESRAZTI TEBERRE
Number of ordinary shares of MYR1 each
HE&T
BEREs % 17 48 2
8 A= REREDR A "= wme N4
Total % of total
Personal Family Corporate beneficial issued
a4 Name interests interests interests interests shares
§8 18 Ak Cheong Kheng Lim 1 _ _ y 0.00001%
5 42 Cheong Sim Lam - 3 - 3 0.00003%
EEL Cheong Chong Ling 1 - - 1 0.00001%
) REMERRA T (c) Tian Teck Land Limited
SEREEBE0.25 TR 7R E
Number of shares of HK$0.25 each
EERa
EnEs % 17 48 &1
B A= RE#ER A A RE R e N4
Total % of total
Personal Family Corporate beneficial issued
a4 Name interests interests interests interests shares
FEp Y Cheong Hooi Hong 4,625,792 — — 4,625,792 0.97%
$EIE R Cheong Kheng Lim 46,023,872 115,292 — 46,139,164 9.72%
5 1 e Cheong Keng Hooi 26,912,036 1,002,384 — 27,914,420 5.88%
zpode) Cheong Sim Lam 1,099,504 - - 1,099,504 0.23%
EIEL Cheong Chong Ling 412,000 — — 412,000 0.09%
ittt Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 2,000 — 115,200 117,200 0.02%
(%) (Note)
i AEEZD NH15200 AR EERAGEFEN Note: The corporate interests of 115,200 shares represent 115,200 shares held by
11520088 J& 17 o IRIBBE M) - ML ERR Chason Limited where Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles is taken to be interested in
BRALERMHOER - such shares under the SFO.
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EERESTHAEEENIR Interests and Short Positions of Directors and
B EERDNEREBWYRELZ  Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares

BRE @) and Debentures (continued)
d FEARAT (d) Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited
BEREEBBITEERRE
Number of ordinary shares of HK$1 each
HE &7
ERER R EH
PN XEER AR ER By WEDL
Total % of total
Personal Family Corporate beneficial issued
4 Name interests interests interests interests shares
FEp Y] Cheong Hooi Hong 25 - - 25 25%
fBIE MK Cheong Kheng Lim 25 — — 25 25%
EmE Cheong Keng Hooi 25 — — 25 25%
B Cheong Sim Lam 25 — — 25 25%
e #@mBEBERADE (e) Yik Fok Investment Holding Company, Limited
EREEBBITEERRE
Number of ordinary shares of HK$1 each
hE &7
BEDER IR 17 48 %
Bl A fE = REER AT R By WE DL
Total % of total
Personal Family Corporate beneficial issued
wa Name interests interests interests interests shares
EEE Cheong Hooi Hong 10 — — 10 0.00005%
fEIB MK Cheong Kheng Lim 10 — — 10 0.00005%
§8 1 1 Cheong Keng Hooi 10 — — 10 0.00005%
i pogeal Cheong Sim Lam 10 — — 10 0.00005%

M Ftpr IR B E N - AN B IR R EFH G Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2009, none of the directors and
FEIREHEEEFNELMEB TR IR E%E chief executives of the Company or their associates (as defined in the Rules
FAILNEMARAARAT LB ZAEL SR Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”)
N ZIEBEENF=ZA=1+—"H ARQRAESH had interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
FESITHRAEREBME A (KHBITHES L debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
TRA(TETRAND) ZEE)IRBEHEE AR meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
Blel EAREE A E (B A F 5 IE0 EXVELFTE, kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
WEE)NIED  HEROEEBNEZR K to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

NN
IR)E °
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Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders and Other Persons in Shares and
Underlying Shares

As at 31 March 2009, other than the interests of the directors and chief
executives of the Company as disclosed above, the Company has been
notified of the following interests in the shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO:

BREEEREIT HEBRTRHO
EERRE ARENESL

Number of Percentage of
ordinary shares total issued
of HK$1 each shares
REBRAF Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited 180,030,681 50.01%
(7F1) (Note 1)
REHESBR AT Tian Teck Land Limited 180,030,681 50.01%
(7F1) (Note 1)
=P Cheong Kheng Lim 26,123,715 7.26%
(32) (Note 2)
WE & Lim Yoke Soon 26,123,715 7.26%
(3#3) (Note 3)
i Notes:
) BRESFKOIFENCCEMETORMEZR RAR 1) The register of interests and short positions in shares kept under section 336 of

TEMBETR REERAAMBEENERERE
I 2 A PR A 7] 3 7 #9180,030,681 A A% (0 4E A °

@ B M S E A 226123715 IR B D R &Y
26,089,715 % % 42 B M 5¢ 4 B A F5 4 + 34,0002 A1
REGEBHREBRLLTRHEA -

©) WE B+ 226,123,715 1% B% 1 7 934,000 3%
AMEBELZTEARZE - 26,089,715 Al A H A B
EEMEERE -

BT HEEN  RZETAF=ZRA=1—
B AR A R AN A B H Al RS R
F &P £33 M AR R B MR QAR
D AARRAR D A TR E ©

the SFO indicates that the interest disclosed by Tian Teck Investment Holding
Co., Limited is the same as the 180,030,681 shares disclosed by Tian Teck
Land Limited.

) Out of the 26,123,715 shares in which Mr Cheong Kheng Lim is interested,
26,089,715 shares were held by Mr Cheong Kheng Lim himself, and
34,000 shares were held by his spouse, Ms Lim Yoke Soon.

) Out of the 26,123,715 shares in which Ms Lim Yoke Soon is interested,
34,000 shares were held by Ms Lim Yoke Soon herself, and 26,089,715 shares
were held by her spouse, Mr Cheong Kheng Lim.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2009, no other interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company required to be
recorded in the register kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO

have been notified to the Company.
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Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No contract of significance, to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
or controlling shareholders was a party, or in which a director of the
Company had a material interest (whether directly or indirectly), subsisted at

the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Management Contracts

(@) The Company has an administrative services agreement and also a
non-administrative services agreement, each for an indefinite period,
with its immediate holding company, Tian Teck Land Limited, whereby
the Company agrees to provide, respectively, company secretarial
services (under the administrative services agreement) and office
space and various staff (under the non-administrative services
agreement). The aggregate fees received by the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2009 amounted to HK$1,200,000 (2008:
HK$1,200,000).

(b) A management agreement exists between the Company and DTZ
Debenham Tie Leung Property Management Limited (‘DTZ”) whereby
DTZ is responsible for general building and property management
(except for the services relating to tenancy) of ISQUARE for an initial
period of 2 years after the date of the occupation permit and the
appointment continues after the said period unless and until the
Company gives to the other three months’ notice in writing. No
manager’s remuneration was paid by the Company for the years
ended 31 March 2009 and 2008.

Apart from the foregoing, no contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the

Company was entered into or existed during the year.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption by the Company
and its Subsidiaries of its Listed Securities

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company’s listed

securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year.
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Disclosure Pursuant to Rule 13.21 of the
Listing Rules

On 20 October 2006, the Company, as borrower, entered into a facility
agreement with a bank (the “Facility Agreement”) with covenants relating to

specific performance of its controlling shareholders.

The Facility Agreement comprises a 5-year term loan facility of up to
HKS$1 bilion and a 5-year revolving credit facility of up to HK$200 million.
The Company has an option to extend the facilities for two additional years,

subject to, among other things, the agreement of the lending bank.

Pursuant to the Facility Agreement, it would be an event of default if
Mr Cheong Hooi Hong, Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, Mr Cheong Keng Hooi and
Mr Cheong Sim Lam, collectively being the controlling shareholders of the
Company and its listed parent company, Tian Teck Land Limited, cease to
beneficially own, directly or indirectly, at least 25% of the issued share capital

of the Company in accordance with the terms of the Facility Agreement.

Upon the occurrence of such an event of default, the lending bank may,
among other things, demand immediate repayment of all of the loans made

to the Company under the Facility Agreement together with accrued interest.

The Company will make continuing disclosure pursuant to Rule 13.21 of the
Listing Rules in subsequent interim and annual reports for so long as the

circumstances giving rise to the relevant obligation continue to exist.

Save as disclosed above, the Company does not have other disclosure

obligations under Rule 13.21 of the Listing Rules.
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Disclosure Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules

(@)

The dollar amount of director’s emoluments of Mr Cheong Hooi Hong
for the year ended 31 March 2009 has decreased by HK$275,000 to
HK$2,359,000 when compared to that for the year ended 31 March
2008, due to allowances for expenses actually incurred by him. The

policy regarding such expenses has not changed.

The dollar amount of director’s emoluments of Mr Cheong Kheng Lim
for the year ended 31 March 2009 has decreased by HK$240,000 to
HK$3,785,000 when compared to that for the year ended 31 March
2008. The amount of the director’s emoluments which is covered by
his service contract with the Company as chief operation officer has
decreased by HK$280,000 to HK$3,294,000 when compared to that
for the last financial year. The decrease is due to allowances for
expenses actually incurred by him. The policy regarding such

expenses has not changed.

The dollar amount of director’s emoluments of Mr Cheong Keng Hooi
for the year ended 31 March 2009 has increased by HK$24,000 to
HK$2,266,000 when compared to that for the year ended 31 March
2008. The amount of the director’'s emoluments which is covered by
his service contract with the Company as chief project officer has
increased by HK$2,000 to HK$1,760,000 when compared to that for
the last financial year. The increase is due to allowances for expenses
actually incurred by him. The policy regarding such expenses has not

changed.

The dollar amount of director's emoluments of Mr Cheong Sim Lam
for the year ended 31 March 2009 has decreased by HK$27,000 to
HK$1,793,000 when compared to that for the year ended 31 March
2008, due to allowances for expenses actually incurred by him. The

policy regarding such expenses has not changed.
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Disclosure Pursuantto Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules (Continued)

()

The dollar amount of director’'s emoluments of Miss Cheong Chong
Ling for the year ended 31 March 2009 has increased by HK$13,000
to HK$983,000 when compared to that for the year ended 31 March
2008. The amount of the director’s emoluments which is covered by
her service contract with the Company as chief administration officer
has increased by less than HK$100 to HK$539,000 when compared
to that for the last financial year. The increase is due to allowances for
expenses actually incurred by her. The policy regarding such expenses

has not changed.

Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director of a listed company, China Ground Source Energy

Limited, with effect from 1 May 2009.

Bank Loan and Other Borrowings

Particulars of bank loan and other borrowings of the Company and the

Group as at 31 March 2009 are set out in notes 21 to 23 to the financial

statements.

Five Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial years is set out on pages 115 to 116 of the annual report.

Retirement Schemes

Particulars of the retirement schemes are set out in note 26 to the financial

statements.
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Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the

Listing Rules.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent non-executive

directors to be independent.

Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company is to

be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board
Cheong Hooi Hong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 9 July 2009
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Executive Directors

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong, aged 62, has been Chairman and a director of the
Company and Tian Teck Land Limited since 1984 and 1983 respectively. He
is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited.
He is also a director of Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited and a
director of all holding companies and subsidiaries in the Group. Mr Cheong
is a member of both the CPA Australia and the Institute of Certified Public
Accountants of Singapore. He holds a diploma from the Royal Melbourne
Institute of Technology in Commerce. He has extensive experience in
property development and investment both in Hong Kong and Singapore for

over 40 years.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Kheng Lim, Cheong Keng Hooi
and Cheong Sim Lam and is also the uncle of Miss Cheong Chong Ling, a

director.

Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, aged 60, has been Deputy Chairman and a director
of the Company since 1984. He has been the Deputy Chairman and a
director of Tian Teck Land Limited since 1983 and 1969 respectively. He is
the Chief Operation Officer of the Company. Mr Cheong is also a director of
Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited and a director of all holding
companies and subsidiaries in the Group (except Austin Hills Land Sdn.
Bhd., Austin Hills Country Resort Pte. Ltd., Austin Hills View Sdn. Bhd. and
Austin Hills Villas Sdn. Bhd.).

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Keng Hooi
and Cheong Sim Lam and is also the father of Miss Cheong Chong Ling, a

director.
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Executive Directors (continued)

Mr Cheong Keng Hooi, aged 56, has been a director of the Company and
Tian Teck Land Limited since 1984 and 1983 respectively. He is the Chief
Project Officer of the Company. He is also a director of Tian Teck Investment
Holding Co., Limited and a director of all holding companies and subsidiaries
in the Group (except Austin Hills View Sdn. Bhd. and Austin Hills Villas Sdn.
Bhd.). Mr Cheong holds a degree of Bachelor of Business Administration

from the University of Hawaii.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Kheng Lim
and Cheong Sim Lam and is also the uncle of Miss Cheong Chong Ling, a

director.

Mr Cheong Sim Lam, aged 50, has been a director of the Company and
Tian Teck Land Limited since 1984 and 1983 respectively. He is the Chief
Investment Officer of the Company. He is also a director of Tian Teck
Investment Holding Co., Limited and a director of all holding companies and
subsidiaries in the Group. He obtained a certificate in Accounting and
General Business from Kapiolani Community College, Hawaii and has over

29 years of working experience.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Kheng Lim
and Cheong Keng Hooi and is also the uncle of Miss Cheong Chong Ling, a

director.

Miss Cheong Chong Ling, aged 38, joined the Company as an assistant to
directors in 1997. She was appointed as a director of the Company and Tian
Teck Land Limited effective from 1 January 2007. She is the Chief
Administrative Officer of the Company. Miss Cheong holds a degree of
Bachelor of Science from the School of Hotel Administration at Cornell

University.
She is the daughter of Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, the Deputy Chairman and a

director of the Company and is also the niece of directors, Messrs Cheong

Hooi Hong, Cheong Keng Hooi and Cheong Sim Lam.
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Non-executive Directors

Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles, OBE, aged 73, has been a director of the
Company and Tian Teck Land Limited since 1985 and 1984 respectively. He
currently also serves on the audit committee and remuneration committee of
the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited and was the company secretary
of the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited from 1990 to 2004. Mr Sin is a
solicitor and a notary public and holds a degree of Master of Arts from the
University of Cambridge. He was Chairman of Kam Ngan Stock Exchange
from 1985 to 1986 and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited from
1987 to 1988. He was a former Chairman of the Home Ownership Scheme
Committee and the Management Committee of the Hong Kong Housing
Authority and a former member of the Urban Council and the Executive

Committee of the Housing Society.

Mr Lau Wah Sum, GBS, OBE, FCMA, FCPA, LLD, DBA, JP, aged 81, has been a
director of the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited since 1988 and 1993
respectively. He currently also serves on the audit committee and
remuneration committee of the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited.
Mr Lau was a Legislative Councillor from 1988 to 1995, Chairman of the
Court and Council of the Hong Kong Baptist University and Chairman of the
Urban Renewal Authority. He is also a member of the Court of the Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology and an independent non-

executive director of another listed company.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul, aged 53, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited in 2004. He
currently also serves on the audit committee and remuneration committee of
the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited. Mr Chow has significant
experience in accounting and finance and has been an Associate of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales since 1983 and an
Associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia since 1988
and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr Chow is an independent non-executive director of another listed

company.

Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam, aged 68, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited in 2004. He
currently also serves on the audit committee and remuneration committee of
the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited. Mr Yau has extensive legal
knowledge and experience. He qualified as a barrister in England in 1964
and practised as an advocate and solicitor in Singapore and Malaysia, and
as an advocate in the State of Brunei before coming to Hong Kong. Mr Yau
was admitted to Hong Kong Bar in 1985 and practised as a barrister until
2001.

Mr Lee Chung, aged 35, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company in 2004. He currently also serves on the audit
committee and remuneration committee of the Company. Mr Lee holds a
degree of Bachelor of Science in Engineering from Colorado School of Mines
in the United States and a MBA degree from the University of Warwick in the
United Kingdom. He has extensive experience in venture capital and property

investment in the United States, Israel and PRC.
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Senior Management

Miss Chan Mei Yee, CPA, ACCA, aged 32, is senior accountant of the
Company. She holds an honour degree of Bachelor of Business
Administration and a degree of Master of Arts from City University of Hong
Kong. She has nearly 9 years of experience in accounting and auditing. Prior
to joining the Company in 2004, she worked for one of the big four

accounting firms.

Miss Susan Chan So Some, aged 58, joined the Company in 1987 and has
been financial controller since 1990. Prior to joining the Company, Miss Chan
was a chief accountant of the Company’s ultimate holding company. She

has over 29 years of experience in accounting and financial management.

Mr Choi Ming Kwan, aged 52, joined the Group in 1981 and has been the

Company’s project manager since 1990.

Ms Ng Sau Fong, ACIS, ACS, aged 39, holds a degree of Bachelor of Arts
from The University of Hong Kong. Ms Ng joined the Company in 1992 as
assistant to directors and has been the company secretary of the Company

and Tian Teck Land Limited since 2004.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the
Shareholders of

Associated International Hotels Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Associated
International Hotels Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 37 to 114,
which comprise the consolidated and Company balance sheets as at
31 March 2009, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and

other explanatory notes.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and

making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.
Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept

liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
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Auditor’s Responsibility (continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the

financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March 2009
and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been

properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

9 July 2009
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Consolidated Income Statement

BE-_ZZNE=ZA=1+—HBILLEE (LLB¥%I/R) Forthe Year Ended 31 March 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2009 2008
B 5 T T
Note $°000 $'000
BEH Turnover 283 16,836 17,792
Ri& / $HE KA Cost of services/sales (15,350) (15,588)
1,486 2,204
b U A Other revenue 4 12,608 25,816
HAth g8 %5 Other net loss 4 (1,804) (1,285)
"EYFEGE Valuation (losses)/gains on
(E18)  &BF investment properties 12(a) (180,925) 455,008
EY 5 RE Reversal of impairment loss
&5 18 ¥ [o] in respect of other properties 12(a) 4,008 4,014
HEZEM Selling expenses (572) (721)
THEMR Administrative expenses (44,825) (36,781)
e (FE) RA (Loss)/profit from operations 3 (210,024) 448,255
BE B Finance costs 5(a) (138) (141)
MBLAET (B58), RER (Loss)/profit before taxation 5 (210,162) 448,114
Frig Income tax 8(a) 35,280 (48,678)
AEAEERREGEREE (Loss)/profit for the year attributable to
(E|) & F equity shareholders of the Company 9 (174,882) 399,436
AEERMSARER Dividends payable to equity shareholders
BRERERE : of the Company attributable to the year:  10(a)
FREERFPEEE Interim dividend declared during the year - —
HEHEEREDIK Final dividend proposed after the
REAAR B balance sheet date - —
BR (EHE) BA (Loss)/earnings per share
—EFXR#E — basic and diluted 11 $(0.49) $1.11

FMEEENABNNEE AP BIRRO —E D

The notes on pages 44 to 114 form part of these financial statements.
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EEEERX
Balan

ce Sheets
—2BRE=ZA=+-

B (LLE®%)R) At 31 March 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

rE ¥ NN
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
B 5 T Tt T T
Note $°000 $°000 $°000 $'000
ERBEE Non-current assets
FEEE Fixed assets 12
—REYE — Investment properties 5,945,610 5,561,101 5,889,970 5,497,050
—H ¥ - BE  — Other properties, plant and
B equipment 236,864 270,668 11,402 12,266
6,182,474 5,831,769 5,901,372 5,509,316
RHEBARMMEZS  Interest in subsidiaries 13 - - 281,287 320,718
FRIEFIBE E Deferred tax assets 8(d) o1 97 — —
6,182,565 5,831,866 6,182,659 5,830,034
REBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 203 235 - —
FEWERR - BT & Accounts receivable, deposits
S&iEEREN and prepayments 15 9,580 3,883 7,995 1,436
EIRFIRITIER Pledged bank deposits 16 2,226 — 2,226 —
Hae MIE4E&%EEY  Cashand cash equivalents 17 444,886 474,145 442,295 470,116
456,895 478,263 452,516 471,552
REBEE Current liabilities
FEATEREN ~ HA Accounts payable, other
FERT N EETEF  payables and accruals 18 206,018 67,062 198,168 57,751
BT & Deposits received 19 5,335 5,022 2,274 1,245
EHRS & EHE Provision for long service
payments 20 1,774 1,282 1,774 1,282
JERTHIEBATIZIE  Amounts due to subsidiaries 14 — — 21,290 20,109
R E B EARIE Obligations under finance leases 22 73 140 - —
AERFTIS R Current taxation 8(c) 68 44 - _
213,268 73,550 223,506 80,387
RBEERE Net current assets 243,627 404,713 229,010 391,165
EEHAEBER Total assets less current
REBERE liabilities 6,426,192 6,236,579 6,411,669 6,221,199
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REE KA

The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
B 5 T Tt F T Tt
Note $’000 $°000 $°000 $'000
*RBEE Non-current liabilities
WITEF —BEH Bankloan — secured 21 568,000 130,000 568,000 130,000
FE TR b (B Government lease premiums
payable 23 2,327 2,367 2,327 2,367
mhE R E AR Obligations under finance leases 22 — 70 - —
BELERIESE Deferred tax liabilities 8(d) 695,164 730,655 695,164 730,655
HEmeKaE Other financial liabilities 2 2 — _
1,265,493 863,094 1,265,491 863,022
EEFE NET ASSETS 5,160,699 5,373,485 5,146,178 5,358,177
EXR#E CAPITAL AND RESERVES 24
A& Share capital 360,000 360,000 360,000 360,000
T Reserves 4,800,699 5,013,485 4,786,178 4,998,177
AR TOTAL EQUITY 5,160,699 5,373,485 5,146,178 5,358,177

BEFEER_ZETNFLANBZRELFF AL - Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 9 July 2009.

EFE = Cheong Hooi Hong Cheong Kheng Lim
EEE E M Director Director

FUBEEFAEMWNTEB AR HRERH D © The notes on pages 44 to 114 form part of these financial statements.
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g A HE L s o
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE-_ZZNE=ZA=1+—HBILLEE (LLB¥%|/R) Forthe Year Ended 31 March 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2009 2008
B 5 o T
Note $°000 $'000
72008,72007 %4818 Total equity at 1 April 2008/2007
MR AR 24(a) 5,373,485 4,936,025
BEEEEZREAN Net (loss)/income recognised directly
(F18) W3 in equity:
HEREIRTEER Changes in deferred tax resulting from
IEE R I8 & &) decrease in tax rate 24(a) - 17,613
BEGINKT B A ) Exchange differences on translation of
B SR FTEE financial statements of overseas
HE X Z 5 subsidiaries 24(a) (37,904) 20,333
AREEEEETRFAERD Net (loss)/income for the year recognised
(B18) /W FE directly in equity (37,904) 37,946
TEE (BB RAFE Net (loss)/profit for the year 24(a) (174,882) 399,436
AEECERAN Total recognised net (loss)/income
F(ER), WEAE for the year (212,786) 437,382
EXRSEEN Movement in equity arising from
Enes: capital transactions:
M B A R B TE LR Premium in respect of preference shares
TFEEBRBREMES issued to preference shareholders of
B4 & a subsidiary 24(a) - 78
MNIATHWESELE Total equity at 31 March 24(a) 5,160,699 5,373,485
FUBEEE4ENM B AT BRI —ID The notes on pages 44 to 114 form part of these financial statements.
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SGEHERER
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BE-_ZZNE=ZA=1+—HBILLEE (LLB%%I/R) Forthe Year Ended 31 March 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

RERH

BRELAT (B51R) I T

HEIRE

—FEBKA

— R E A

— I E

—REMEMLE
B (BF)

—HWERE
BEER

—REBEEE
BE(BH)
HER

—INEERE IR

EELESRBA
REBR
5 &R
YR - AT 2
RIER R
(38 m) R
FERTRR R« HoA
FEA 3R % FE &t
gREm/ Ofd)
BET &
g, Omd)
IR %6
Pl
JE A R AT 3 (B ORE

REXBFAN
REEH

Operating activities

(Loss)/profit before taxation

Adjustments for:

— Interest income

— Finance costs

— Depreciation

— Valuation losses/(gains) on
investment properties

— Reversal of impairment loss
in respect of other
properties

— Net loss/(profit) on disposal

of fixed assets

— Foreign exchange losses

Operating loss before changes
in working capital
Decrease in inventories
(Increase)/decrease in
accounts receivable,
deposits and prepayments
Increase/(decrease) in
accounts payable, other
payables and accruals
Increase/(decrease) in
deposits received
Increase in provision for
long service payments
Decrease in government

lease premiums payable

Cash used in operations

carried forward

B 5
Note

2009
Fr
$'000

Fr
$000

(210,162)
(10,537)
138

7,864

180,925

(4,008)

1,835

176,225

(33,937)

(6,376)

957

788

492

(40)

(4,178)

(38,115)

2008
Tt Tt
$'000 $'000
448,114
(22,670)
141
8,182
(455,008)
4,014)
(249)
1,723
(471,895)
(23,781)
42
978
(1,453)
(232)
29
(39)
(675)
(24,456)
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n‘/j—\ Eﬁ:@/ﬂb%%
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BE_ZZThAF=ZA=1+—BLLFE (LUB¥IR) Forthe Year Ended 31 March 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

AATRE K
FANEE
(B BREWE
—ENEAEMNEH
— &)/ BRE
BIMRIE

RETEAMAN
Re 38

REEE

R &S,
BARBEEENRK
(TEREERT
E)

EREmmESH

EEETAE
{8 58
BEMBRTER
210

REFTEH AW
REFH

42  Associated International Hotels Limited 8| BBl B2 /5 B R A 7

Cash used in operations
brought forward

Tax (paid)/refunded

— Hong Kong profits tax paid

— Overseas tax

(paid)/refunded

Net cash used in

operating activities

Investing activities

Interest received

Payment for purchase of fixed
assets other than property
under redevelopment

Payment for expenditure on
property under redevelopment

Proceeds from disposal of
fixed assets

Increase in pledged bank

deposits

Net cash used in

investing activities

Bt 5%
Note

2009

Tt T
$000 $000
(38,115)

(172)

(10)
(182)
(38,297)

10,918

(a74)

(428,106)

(2,226)
(419,888)

2008

Tt Tt
$'000 $'000
(24,456)

(189)

111
(78)
(24,534)

23,445

(2,307)

(104,581)

275
(83,168)



2009 2008
B 5 ST Fx T T
Note $’°000 $’000 $°000 $'000
RMEED Financing activities
ENmEHERS Capital element of finance
BE A lease rentals paid (120) (123)
ENMEHERS Interest element of finance
CORAIPSN=ilSs) lease rentals paid (19) (20)
BB A R EE1T Proceeds in respect of
BERTELR preference shares issued to
fi% SR P15 28 preference shareholders of
a subsidiary — 15
BB HEF 8 Interest paid on government
lease premiums payable (119) (121)
RITERATERIE Proceeds from bank loan 438,000 130,000
BERITEFFE  Interest paid on bank loan (5,470) (2,642)
B EAMEE KA Other borrowing costs paid (1,074) (1,245)
Rl & SE B TS M Net cash generated from
HEe T financing activities 431,198 125,864
RERRESEEY Net (decrease)/increase in
W) #iNEFE  cash and cash equivalents (26,987) 18,162
72008,2007 & Cash and cash equivalents
41BN RE at 1 April 2008/2007
RRELZEY 474,145 457,370
IEEREEHH Effect of foreign exchange
b2 rates changes (2,272) (1,387)
R3ATEMRE Cash and cash equivalents
RREEEN at 31 March 17 444,886 474,145
FMBEZFENMABEMEBAYEHREN—E 5 The notes on pages 44 to 114 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LB 5 R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1

44

FTESEBE 1

BREH

AU BHRERRILBREB GRS
B EERNKEEY B RS
EAD) - KRB EEMBEBNE
IKEEMBRESER) (FEE
FREADMZE  BEAREAR
AMBEBCR RGP R ERE -
KM BERREETEERNCER
BEXHAAERRARESF EHR
ADWERTE - U TRAEERA
WEZEFTBREME -

(@) (@)

FRERMAGEN T ZEFNE
BN -—HEETKEEY RS
R EUERBMEINEREHE
MARBERMNGHHEERE
R o R - ELEEA B LY EARE
BMARRNEEELLER -

AEE L ERBEMEE R 5T H

R ERFEL K RE (2
M3£E30) °

Associated International Hotels Limited SlEEBESEIEAR AT

Significant Accounting Policies

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the significant accounting

policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued a number of new interpretations and
an amendment to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. However,
none of these developments are relevant to the Group’s and

the Company’s operations.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period (see

note 30).
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2009 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries

(together referred to as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except that the
investment properties are stated at their fair value as explained

in the accounting policies set out in note 1(d).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other

sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.
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(LB 5 R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Subsidiaries and minority interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists
when the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that

presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the
same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there

is no evidence of impairment.

Minority interests represent the portion of the net assets of
subsidiaries attributable to interests that are not owned by the
Company, whether directly or indirectly through subsidiaries,
and in respect of which the Group has not agreed any
additional terms with the holders of those interests which would
result in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability. Minority interests are presented in the consolidated
balance sheet within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company. Minority interests in
the results of the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated income statement as an allocation of the total
profit or loss for the year between minority interests and the

equity shareholders of the Company.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(©

Subsidiaries and minority interests (Continued)

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the minority’s
interest in the equity of a subsidiary, the excess, and any further
losses applicable to the minority, are charged against the
Group’s interest except to the extent that the minority has a
binding obligation to, and is able to, make additional investment
to cover the losses. If the subsidiary subsequently reports
profits, the Group’s interest is allocated all such profits until the
minority's share of losses previously absorbed by the Group

has been recovered.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary
is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(h)), unless

the investment is classified as held for sale.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 1(f)) to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These include

land held for a currently undetermined future use.

Investment properties are stated in the balance sheet at fair
value. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or
from the retirement or disposal of an investment property is
recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from investment

properties is accounted for as described in note 1(p)(ii).
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the
interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment property is
accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease (see note
1(f), and the same accounting policies are applied to that
interest as are applied to other investment properties leased
under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted for as

described in note 1(f).

Investment property that is being constructed or developed for
future use as investment property is classified as investment

property and stated at fair value.

Other properties, plant and equipment

Other properties, plant and equipment are stated in the balance
sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation (see note 1(g)) and

impairment losses (see note 1(h)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of other properties, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss

on the date of retirement or disposal.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

()

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or
assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a
series of payments. Such a determination is made based on an
evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a

lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases, with the following

exceptions:

— property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as an investment property on
a property-by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if held

under a finance lease (see note 1(d)); and
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

() Leased assets (Continued)

)

(i)

Associated International Hotels Limited SlEEBESEIEAR AT

Classification of assets leased to the Group (Continued)
— land held for own use under an operating lease,
the fair value of which cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a building situated
thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted
for as being held under a finance lease, unless the
building is also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first entered
into by the Group, or taken over from the previous

lessee.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value of
the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments, of such assets are included in
fixed assets and the corresponding liabilities, net of
finance charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates which
write off the cost of the assets over the term of the
relevant lease or, where it is likely that the Group will
obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as set
out in note 1(g). Impairment losses are accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy as set out in note
1(h). Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are
charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases so
as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate of
charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for
each accounting period. Contingent rentals are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they

are incurred.



1

FES TR @)

®)

(¢)

HEEE @)

iy KEHEER
MREAEERAKLEHEE
BEEMFERE  RIREMA
EEONRESERER
FraEmgstfifn UE
BHEBEERIE  BEREHE
MELEEEFREHRBEE
BERTE £ & e E = AR
A o FHE AT R 8D D 1 O
MEBZTHERLBAEFN
RBEHERKE D - HEHR
CHEHELAWE BN
BaEPIX -

NREHERE L E
KARKEEGRZTHERR
B BOBERREMEN
MR IN(2BM 1) ©

meE
i BERREEBNFE
TR AR EEABE(NE)
BEBNURHERUNESEFE
m -

T REF ARBREEFHR

TEEFA] HEARR 2
BEETHE U
ER B HIRR A
L4045

G- £E  3E5F

L

B 5%

KAEE T AFHREMFTE -

1

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

() Leased assets (Continued)

(i

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in

the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease term except where the property is classified as

an investment property (see note 1(d)).

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of other

properties, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual

value, if any, using the straight-line method over their estimated

useful lives as follows:

Land and buildings Over the shorter of the unexpired term

of lease and their estimated useful
lives, being no more than 40 years

after the date of completion

Furniture, fixtures 3-5 years

and equipment

Motor vehicles 5 years

Freehold land is not depreciated.
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Associated International Hotels Limited SlEEBESEIEAR AT

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Depreciation (continued)

Where parts of an item of other properties, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its

residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
each balance sheet date to identify indications that the following
assets may be impaired or an impairment loss previously

recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

— other properties, plant and equipment; and
— investments in subsidiaries.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is

estimated.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its
net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-

generating unit).
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(h)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units are allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of the assets in the unit (or group of
units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair

value less costs to sell, or value in use, if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. A reversal of an impairment loss
is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses
are credited to profit or loss in the year in which the

reversals are recognised.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Inventories

Inventories comprise of stocks of beverages and consumables,

are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated on the first-in, first-out basis and comprises
all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the

inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs necessary to make

the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period

in which the reversal occurs.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

0)

Accounts and other receivables

Accounts and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost less allowance for
impairment of bad and doubtful debts, except where the
receivables are interest-free loans made to related parties
without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting
would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated
at cost less allowance for impairment of bad and doubtful

debts.

Impairment losses of bad and doubtful debts are recognised
when there is objective evidence of impairment and are
measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the
financial asset and the estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the asset’s original effective interest rate where the effect of
discounting is material. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the attention of the
Group about events that have an impact on the asset’s
estimated future cash flows such as significant financial difficulty

of the debtor.

Impairment losses for accounts receivable included within
accounts and other receivables whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote,
the amount considered irrecoverable is written off against
accounts receivable directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged to the
allowance account are reversed against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly are

recognised in profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Accounts and other payables

Accounts and other payables are initially recognised at fair value
and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated

at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash

flow statement.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(m) Employee benefits

(n)

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the
year in which the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are

stated at their present values.

(i) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a result
of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal plan

which is without realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognised

directly in equity, in which case they are recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in

respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax

credits.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax

loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are
not part of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the
case of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences,

unless it is probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax

assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(")

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is
reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient

taxable profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each other
and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against current
tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred tax
liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current

tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation

authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis

or realise and settle simultaneously.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Company or the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the

obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of

outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as

follows:

(i) Golf and recreational club and related services
Revenue arising from golf and recreational club operation

is recognised when the relevant services are provided.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(P)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i) Rental income from operating leases
Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income

in the accounting period in which they are earned.

(i) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the

effective interest method.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are

recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was

determined.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Balance
sheet items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised directly in a separate

component of equity.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences recognised in equity which relate to
that foreign operation is included in the calculation of the profit

or loss on disposal.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred, except to the extent that they are
capitalised as being directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or

sale.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and
activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is
suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or

sale are interrupted or complete.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(s)

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is

considered to be related to the Group if:

()

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one
or more intermediaries, to control the Group or exercise
significant influence over the Group in making financial
and operating policy decisions, or has joint control over

the Group;

the Group and the party are subject to common control;

the party is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent, or a close family
member of such an individual, or is an entity under the
control, joint control or significant influence of such

individuals;

the party is a close family member of a party referred to
in (i) or is an entity under the control, joint control or

significant influence of such individuals; or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for
the benefit of employees of the Group or of any entity

that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced

by, that individual in their dealings with the entity.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is
engaged either in providing products or services (business
segment), or in providing products or services within a particular
economic environment (geographical segment), which is
subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of

other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting
system, the Group has chosen business segment information
as the primary reporting format and geographical segment
information as the secondary reporting format for the purposes

of these financial statements.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities
include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those
that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to that segment.
For example, segment assets may include inventories,
accounts receivable and properties, plant and equipment.
Segment revenue, expenses, assets, and liabilities are
determined before intra-group balances and intra-group
transactions are eliminated as part of the consolidation process,
except to the extent that such intra-group balances and
transactions are between group entities within a single
segment. Inter-segment pricing is based on similar terms as

those available to other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during
the period to acquire segment assets (both tangible and
intangible) that are expected to be used for more than one

period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and corporate
assets, borrowings, tax balances, corporate and financing

expenses.
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Turnover

The principal activities of the Group are property investment and golf

and recreational club operation.

Turnover represents rental income and revenue from golf and
recreational club operation. The amount of each significant category

of revenue recognised in turnover during the year is as follows:

2009 2008

Fr T

$°000 $000

REDEMBRES WA Gross rentals from investment properties 311 295
SRRELEKLIA  Revenue from golf and recreational club operation 16,525 17,497
16,836 17,792
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Segment Reporting

Business segment information is chosen as the primary reporting
format because this is more relevant to the Group’s internal financial
reporting. Geographical segment presents similar information to the
business segment as the Group’s revenue and results of property
leasing were derived from Hong Kong, while the Group’s revenue and
results of the golf and recreational club operation were primarily
derived from Malaysia. Therefore, no separate geographical analysis is

shown.
The Group comprises the following main business segments:

() Property leasing

Leasing of industrial premises to generate rental income.

(i)  Golf and recreational club operation

Providing resort services and facilities to club members,
including golf courses, swimming pool, tennis courts,
gymnasium and American pool tables, and food and beverage

at restaurant outlets.
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D EBIRE (@)

3 Segment Reporting (continued)

@ DIWHMARZELE (@) Segment revenue and results
AEBUWA DERELE
Segment revenue Segment results
2009 2008 2009 2008
SR Tt T Tt
$’000 $’000 $000 $'000
MEHRE —FE Property leasing — Hong Kong 311 295 299 282
SRR ELs Golf and recreational club
@ — B R operation — Malaysia 17,338 19,400 (5,971) (6,077)
17,649 19,695 (5,672) (5,795)
REMESE Valuation (losses)/gains on
(E518) /&7 investment properties (180,925) 455,008
B RE Reversal of impairment loss in
78 #E [0l respect of other properties 4,008 4,014
o B B A A Unallocated other revenue 11,795 23,913
ROBEHLLYWZE  Unallocated operating income
&EHR and expenses (39,230) (28,885)
4 (B548) /% F)  (Loss)/profit from operations (210,024) 448,255
B & AR Finance costs (138) (141)
BALAT (B18) % F|  (Loss)/profit before taxation (210,162) 448,114
8% Income tax 35,280 (48,678)
RNEE (F518) /% F  (Loss)/profit for the year (174,882) 399,436
DT Analysed by:
L Turnover 16,836 17,792
Hi A —E2 98 Other revenue — allocated 813 1,903
17,649 19,695
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3 Segment Reporting (continued)

b)) PHEERERE (b) Segment assets and liabilities
EE =0t
Assets Liabilities

2009 2008 2009 2008

SEEE T+t ST T

$000 $’000 $’000 $'000

WEME —FHF  Property leasing — Hong Kong| 5,889,970 5,497,050 198,147 57,922
SRAES%e Golf and recreational club

& — B RPEEs  operation — Malaysia 205,277 238,110 10,883 13,062

6,095,247 5,735,160 209,030 70,984

FHBIEE Unallocated items 544,213 574,969 1,269,731 865,660

6,639,460 6,310,129 1,478,761 936,644

) HftoIHER (c) Other segment information
e =:Nc 3
Depreciation Capital expenditure

2009 2008 2009 2008

Fx T S T

$°000 $°000 $°000 $'000

WMETE —FB  Property leasing — Hong Kong — — 573,845 137,912
SREAkELS Golf and recreational club

e — BRPaE  operation — Malaysia 4,995 5,302 351 1,570

4,995 5,302 574,196 139,482

KO HEIER Unallocated items 2,869 2,880 123 737

7,864 8,182 574,319 140,219
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4 HAW AR EEFRE 4  Other Revenue and Net Loss
2009 2008
Fx Tt
$°000 $'000
H b A Other revenue
FLEWA Interest income 10,537 22,670
MR AT EE EIRER  Management fee received from holding company 1,200 1,200
HAh Others 871 1,946
12,608 25,816
Hih 5B FE Other net loss
REETEEE Net (loss)/profit on disposal of fixed assets
(E518) /BFF5E ®) 249
HNEEE 1R R R Net foreign exchange losses (1,796) (1,534)
(1,804) (1,285)
5 MBREA(EE), &R 5 (Loss)/Profit Before Taxation
BT (E18) & Bk, (5EA) ¢ (Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):
2009 2008
Fx Tt
$°000 $'000
(@ ®MERK (@ Finance costs
JE A BURT HE 1B A1) B Interest on government lease
premiums payable 119 121
MEHERENMBER Finance charges on obligations under
finance leases 19 20
RITERAE Interest on bank loan 5,883 3,555
HAibEE A Other borrowing costs 1,004 1,228
BEERAREE Total borrowing costs 7,025 4,924
B FAERPMER Less: Borrowing costs capitalised into
N A= i property under redevelopment* (6,887) (4,783)
138 141
EBERAEREFI121%(ZZZ )\ F: * The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 1.21% (2008:
3.68%) EARAL o 3.68%) per annum.
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5 PBRELA(BE), B @ 5 (Loss)/Profit Before Taxation (continued)

BREAT(B8) SRR BNk (GEA) - (Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):
(&) (Continued)
2009 2008
T T
$°000 $'000
b) BIRZKE (b)  Staff costs
FOE TR R AT B3R Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans 1,379 940
e IERHEMEFR Salaries, wages and other benefits 23,088 24,050
24,467 24,990
(0 HfttEH (c) Otheritems
BEWMENES Gross rental income from investment
I N=X properties (311) (295)
B BEEYH Less: Direct outgoings 12 13
(299) (282)
KEHEER  REHEE Operating lease charges: minimum
(NE ¢ lease payments
—MEHES — property rentals 785 —
& U BR FURLE B 1B Impairment losses on accounts receivable 283 1,086
FERAR Cost of inventories 1,451 1,520
Z SR BN & Auditor’s remuneration
— ZE R — audit services 537 515
— BRI — tax services 113 102
— B AR 75 — other services 154 151
e Depreciation 7,864 8,182
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6 EEMe 6 Directors’ Remuneration
RIEFEBCRAED ) E161 155 sk & Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the
EMemT Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:
£ A= B 2009
Exwe REUAR BETEA AR M
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
T T T T FTr
$°000 $000 $000 $°000 $000
HITES Executive Directors

EEE Cheong Hooi Hong 50 1,609 700 - 2,359
SBIE MR Cheong Kheng Lim 50 3,017+ 700 18 3,785
#imE Cheong Keng Hooi 50 1,916 300 - 2,266
g odea] Cheong Sim Lam 50 1,443 300 - 1,793
#RK Cheong Chong Ling 50 795 120 18 983

EBITES Non-executive Directors
E1E Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 50 380 - - 430
2E R Lau Wah Sum 50 380 - - 430

BIAYFHITEE Independent Non-executive

Directors
AEE Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 170 - - - 170
HhEE Yau Allen Lee-nam 170 - — _ 170
EVN Lee Chung 170 - - _ 170

860 9,540 2,120 36 12,556
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6 E=EEME @) 6 Directors’ Remuneration (continued)

RIREBCRBEG) E161 165w E Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the
EWeSw T - (8 Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: (Continued)

HTES Executive Directors

e Cheong Hooi Hong 50 1,884 700 - 2,634
SEIEM Cheong Kheng Lim 50 3,257* 700 18 4,025
EmE Cheong Keng Hooi 50 1,892 300 - 2,242
LT Cheong Sim Lam 50 1,470 300 - 1,820
EHEE Cheong Chong Ling 50 782 120 18 970
FHTES Non-executive Directors

18R Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 50 380 — - 430
ZIER Lau Wah Sum 50 380 - - 430

BYFHITESE Independent Non-executive

Directors
AEE Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 170 - - - 170
HhEE Yau Allen Lee-nam 170 - - - 170
B3N Lee Chung 170 - - - 170
860 10,045 2,120 36 13,061
* EHRETEEM@EEMTERBEEME * The amount excludes the benefits for the provision of residential
#) & F - & 5 B & £ 4 52,538,000 7T properties to Mr Cheong Kheng Lim with an aggregate estimated rental
(ZZZ N\ F @ 2,5380007L) © value of approximately $2,538,000 (2008: $2,538,000).
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7 EeMEAxL 7 Individuals with Highest Emoluments
ZEENFRZETNEFERMNER The five highest paid individuals for the years 2008 and 2009 are all
MeEMmATHAERXRRNES  Eiile directors of the Company whose emoluments are disclosed in note 6.
B SIE R T EE6

8 FIBH 8 Income Tax
@ HEBTRIMROFAEH (@) Taxation in the consolidated income

BHA statement represents:
2009 2008
F o T
$°000 $'000
AR IE —FHBFEB  Current tax — Hong Kong profits tax
REE T IEERE Provision for the year 201 164
AR — 8o Current tax — Overseas
REEHIERER Provision for the year 4 10
NEFEEEHRFE Over-provision in respect of prior years - (44)
4 (34)
EEB 18 Deferred tax
WEMELNREBEEHE Changes in fair value of investment properties (29,853) 75,076
T ERENELS FED Origination and reversal of temporary
differences (5,632) (4,162)
RS $2007 54 A1 0 Effect of decrease in tax rate on deferred
FIREFH BASGHFE  tax balances at 1 April 2007 - (22,366)
(35,485) 48,548
(35,280) 48,678
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8

Income Tax (continued)

(@)

Taxation in the consolidated income
statement represents: (Continued)

On 27 February 2008, the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region announced a decrease in the
profits tax rate in Hong Kong from 17.5% to 16.5% with effect
from the year of assessment 2008/09. The Revenue Bill was
passed in June 2008. This decrease is taken into account in
the preparation of the Group’s and the Company’s financial
statements. Accordingly, the relevant deferred tax assets and
liabilities at the balance sheet date are calculated at 16.5%
(2008: 16.5%) and the provision for Hong Kong profits tax is
calculated at 16.5% (2008: 17.5%) of the estimated assessable

profits for the year.

Taxation for overseas subsidiaries is charged at the appropriate

current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant countries.
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8 FrBEH @@ 8 Income Tax (continued)

(b) Fri8®i( ?EE %) /X HME (b) Reconciliation between tax (credit)/expense
EABXGTEST(ER) and accounting (loss)/profit at applicable tax
V-l ﬁ rates:

2009 2008
T T
$°000 $'000
BrEiR (&B18) a5 (Loss)/profit before taxation (210,162) 448,114
I1RBBAEFEE B R ES % B Notional tax on (loss)/profit before taxation,
ERMEFTERBA calculated at the rates applicable to
(E18) %FHAZERE  profits in the countries concerned (40,290) 80,476
TAE S HMFIEEE  Taxeffect of non-deductible expenses 7,353 657
BAFHBENHRETZE  Taxeffect of non-taxable income (2,372) (4,482)
AERLREREY Tax effect of temporary differences not
HEFE recognised (516) (1,239)
REAMERERNFFE  Taxeffect of unused tax losses not
EBENHEE recognised 545 _
NEEFE R A EE RIER Tax effect of prior year's unrecognised
MR BEENTRBETE tax losses utilised this year - 26)
REE TR 8 Effect on opening deferred tax balances
i FE 7 T8 B ) 45 2R 4 K resulting from a decrease in tax rate
Eop- 2 during the year - (22,366)
KNEFHERAFEFHREE  Taxeffect of temporary differences
FHE KRN B ATE A recognised this year which are expected
MENEREZEREDY to reverse at a rate lower than the rate
Bimse currently applicable - (4,298)
NEFEEERT Over-provision in prior years - (44)
BEHE (KR SH Actual tax (credit)/expense (35,280) 48,678
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8 FriE® @@ 8 Income Tax (continued)
(c) Current taxation in the balance sheets

© EEREBXRATOANEAR
BEHA represents:

KEBEZBFEHREE Provision for Hong Kong profits tax
for the year 201 164
RN E MRS Provisional profits tax paid (133) (125)
68 39
NG Overseas taxation - 5
68 44
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Notes to the Financial Statements

8 FTEH @) 8 Income Tax (continued)

) CERECLHBEBEENE (d) Deferred tax assets and liabilities
& : recognised:

h AKEH ()  The Group

EEGAREERBRERN
ERERB(EE) /aENA

' | (LB FIR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
[ 2

The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities

recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and the

movements during the year are as follows:

RETHEER Deferred tax

EEHRE : arising from:
H2007F4A18 At 1 April 2007 705,127 (751) (4,753) 699,623
EEEFR Charged/(credited) to

mer/ (Gt A) profit or loss 52,396 335 (4,183) 48,548
FTARE Credited to reserves (17,613) - - (17,613)
M2008E3A31H At 31 March 2008 739,910 (416) (8,936) 730,558
#H2008F4A1H At 1 April 2008 739,910 (416) (8,936) 730,558
ffiEmP (Credited)/charged to

(tN) /#k profit or loss (29,853) 143 (5,775) (35,485)
20093 A31H At 31 March 2009 710,057 (273) (14,711) 695,073
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Income Tax (continued)

(d) Deferred tax assets and liabilities

recognised: (Continued)

(i) The Company

The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities

recognised in the balance sheet and the movements

DRMAFEESHMT - during the year are as follows:
BB
REREE HERBHE
MIEE R OE7il BBEE M
Depreciation
Revaluation in excess
of investment of the related
and hotel depreciation
properties allowances Tax loss Total
Tr Tr T Tr
$000 $000 $°000 $000
RETHEEN Deferred tax
EERIE : arising from:
2007 &4 A1 H At 1 April 2007 705,127 (642) (4,753) 699,732
iRz Charged/(credited) to
ek (Gt A) profit or loss 52,396 323 4,183) 48,536
AR Credited to reserves (17,613) - - (17,613)
200843 A31H At 31 March 2008 739,910 (319) (8,936) 730,655
R2008%4 A1 8 At 1 April 2008 739,910 (319) (8,936) 730,655
=T (Credited)/charged to
(FFA) /0B profit or loss (29,853) 137 (5,775) (35,491)
20003 A31H At 31 March 2009 710,057 (182) (14,711) 695,164
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8 FiEH ¢ (&) 8 Income Tax (continued)
O CERECLHBEBEENE (d) Deferred tax assets and liabilities
& : (@) recognised: (Continued)
& PN
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
T T F Tt
$°000 $'000 $°000 $'000
EBEBBRIR  Net deferred tax assets
FY IR SEF 18 recognised on the
BEFE balance sheets (91) 97) - —
HEEEBEREZR  Netdeferred tax liabilities
A3 E B 18 recognised on the
BEFE balance sheets 695,164 730,655 695,164 730,655
695,073 730,558 695,164 730,655
) RERWIELEHREBEEE : (e) Deferred tax assets not recognised:
EREFIMMENSEHERE - A In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(n),
RAREBERBHOBGE EEM the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
ERELERKERT &H T U cumulative tax losses of $24,873,000 (2008: $26,330,000) and
BEHEBERUTENEEEZER K depreciation in excess of related depreciation allowances of
&£ B AR5 524873000 L (ZEEN $5,707,000 (2008: $10,157,000) as it is not probable that
F 26,330,000 7T ) B 2 5T B 1K B future taxable profits against which the losses and the
B M /5707000 (ZFEZF )\ F - deductible temporary differences can be utilised will be available
10,157,00070) M B @ AT & & in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses do not
EMITERREBENELERIEE expire under current tax legislation.

E o RBRITBE  BLERBER
RERRE -

9 RAIRBEREREMAEE 9 (Loss)/Profit for the Year Attributable to

(B8 &R Equity Shareholders of the Company

NEEERREEGNGEEERE —£E The consolidated loss attributable to equity shareholders of the

HI| A A &) B 7 ¥ 7% #9211,999,000 7T & Company includes a loss of $211,999,000 (2008: profit of

B (ZZEZ N\ F : & 5420,744,0007T ) © $420,744,000) which has been dealt with in the financial statements
of the Company.
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11

@ AFEERNLAIERZRR

10 Dividends

(@) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of

iz B the Company attributable to the year
2009 2008
T Tt
$000 $'000
TERESZNAEEE No interim dividend declared and paid
(20084 : %) (2008: $Nil) - —
REEBBERGEEHE No final dividend proposed after the
BEISDIRRERE balance sheet date (2008: $Nil)
(20084 : #%) - _

b) BRE-FBRFEEMSLQ

AEERE TRAFE
BER AR E

(b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the Company attributable to the previous
financial year, approved and paid during the

year
2009 2008
Fi Tt
$°000 $'000
EBRE—VHREEN No final dividend in respect of the

RERAIR B AN 4R FE L R
5 (20084 ¢ 4 )

previous financial year, approved and
paid during the year (2008: $Nil) — —

R (EER) BF —EX

FEREX(BR) AFNRERRAFEN
A A &= IR JE G B $8174,882,000 7T
(ZZZ N\ F )\ $1899,436,000 7T ) &
B 217 /) I 38 A% 360,000,000% ( Z = Z )\
F : 360,000,000/% ) it & - ZEENF R
ZTEENFUEBELABELRR -

11 (Loss)/Earnings Per Share — Basic and
Diluted

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is based on the loss
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of $174,882,000
(2008: profit of $399,436,000) and 360,000,000 (2008: 360,000,000)
ordinary shares in issue during the year. There were no potential

dilutive ordinary shares in existence in 2008 and 2009.
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=1 .
12 BEEE 12 Fixed Assets
@ A& (@) The Group
RENE Hit%  BERRE
Investment properties Other properties, plant and equipment
HERBEX
EERYE BENE Nt Hiti % HittEE et ot
Properties held
for leasing
Property under and capital Other
redevelopment appreciation Sub-total properties Other assets Sub-total Total
Tr Fr Tr Tr Tr T Fr
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
BASGE Cost or valuation:
R2008F4A1H  At1 Aprl 2008 5,480,000 81,101 5,561,101 354,381 47,295 401,676 5,962,777
ERAE Exchange adjustments - (8,411) (8,411) (39,101) (4,506) (43,607) (52,018)
# Additions 573,845 - 573,845 18 456 474 574,319
BRE Disposals - - - - (2,988) (2,988) (2,988)
NRBERE Fair value adjustments (180,845) (80) (180,925) - - - (180,925)
R2000F3A31H At 31 March 2009 5,873,000 72,610 5,945,610 315,298 40,257 355,555 6,301,165
R%&: e [
B A Cost - - - 315,298 40,257 355,555 355,555
&8 — 20094 Valuation — 2009 5,873,000 72,610 5,945,610 - - - 5,945,610
5,873,000 72,610 5,945,610 315,298 40,257 355,555 6,301,165
R2iHE ! Accumulated
depreciation:
R2008F4A1H  At1 April 2008 - - - 87,666 43,342 131,008 131,008
ERAE Exchange adjustments - - - (8,974) (4,219) (13,193) (13,193)
AEEHE Charge for the year - - - 6,476 1,388 7,864 7,864
RERERD Written back on
disposals - - - - (2,980) (2,980) (2,980)
AEBEEE Reversal of impairment
loss - - - (4,008) - (4,008) (4,008)
#H200943A318  At31 March 2009 - - - 81,160 37,531 118,691 118,691
BREFE Net book value:
2009438318 At31 March 2009 5,873,000 72,610 5,945,610 234,138 2,726 236,864 6,182,474
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12 TEEE @) 12 Fixed Assets (continued)

@ A%£E @@ (@ The Group (Continued)
REME His B Rk
Investment properties Other properties, plant and equipment
HERFER
EddibyE BENZE st Hinz HithEE it nH
Properties held
for leasing
Property under and capital Other
redevelopment appreciation Sub-total properties Other assets Sub-total Total
T T T Tr Fr T T
$'000 $000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000

BARGE : Cost or valuation:

R2007E4A1H At Apri 2007 4,890,000 73,672 4,963,672 333,287 44,599 377,886 5,341,558
ER AR Exchange adjustments - 4,509 4,509 20,954 2514 23,468 27,977
BE Additions 137,912 — 137,912 140 2,167 2,307 140,219
RE Disposals - - - — (1,985) (1,985) (1,985)
AREERE Fair value adjustments 452,088 2,920 455,008 - - - 455,008
M2008%3A31H At 31 March 2008 5,480,000 81,101 5,561,101 354,381 47,295 401,676 5,962,777
R&: Representing: IO I m T
KA Cost - — — 354,381 47,295 401,676 401,676
{418 — 20085 Valuation — 2008 5,480,000 81,101 5,561,101 - - - 5,561,101
5,480,000 81,101 5,561,101 354,381 47,295 401,676 5,962,777

Eil Accumulated

depreciation:
R2007E4 A 18 At 1 April 2007 - - - 80,421 41,231 121,652 121,652
ELAE Exchange adjustments - - - 4,807 2,340 7,147 7,147
rEENE Charge for the year - - - 6,452 1,730 8,182 8,182
RERER Written back on

disposals - - - - (1,959) (1.959) (1959)
REEEERE Reversal of impairment

loss - - - 4,014) - (4,014) (4,014)
M2008%F3A31H At 31 March 2008 - - - 87,666 43,342 131,008 131,008
BREEE : Net book value:
A2008%3A31H At 31 March 2008 5,480,000 81,101 5,561,101 266,715 3,953 270,668 5,831,769
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=1 .
12 EEE @) 12 Fixed Assets (continued)
(b) &2 F (b) The Company
REM= Hith% - BERRE
Investment properties Other properties, plant and equipment
HERGER
BEhYE BENE &t Hit HitEE U\ ol
Properties held
for leasing
Property under and capital Other
redevelopment appreciation Sub-total properties Other assets Sub-total Total
Tr Tr Tr Tr Tr Tr Tr
$'000 $000 $000 $000 $'000 $000 $000
RASfEE : Cost or valuation:
A2008F4F1H At 1 April 2008 5,480,000 17,050 5,497,050 15,964 11,142 27,106 5,524,156
BE Additions 573,845 - 573,845 - 122 122 573,967
RE Disposals - - - - (268) (268) (268)
ARhBEAR Fair value adjustments (180,845) (80) (180,925) - - - (180,925)
A200043A31H At 31 March 2009 5,873,000 16,970 5,889,970 15,964 10,996 26,960 5,916,930
K& : Representing:
KA Cost - - - 15,964 10,996 26,960 26,960
& —2000%  Valuation — 2009 5,873,000 16,970 5,889,970 - - - 5,889,970
5,873,000 16,970 5,889,970 15,964 10,996 26,960 5,916,930
REtiE - Accumulated
depreciation:
A2008F4F18 At 1 Apri 2008 - - - 5,075 9,765 14,840 14,840
REEHE Charge for the year - - - 530 454 984 984
B H R e Written back on
disposals - - - - (266) (266) (266)
A200043A31H At 31 March 2009 - - - 5,605 9,953 15,558 15,558
BREEE Net book value:
20093 A31H At 31 March 2009 5,873,000 16,970 5,889,970 10,359 1,043 11,402 5,901,372
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12 EEEE @) 12 Fixed Assets (continued)

(b) AT ) (b) The Company (Continued)

BARMEE Cost or valuation:

A2007F4HF18 At 1 April 2007 4,890,000 14,130 4,904,130 15,964 11,169 27,133 4,931,263
BE Additions 137,912 — 137,912 — 738 738 138,650
RE Disposals - - - - (765) (765) (765)
DREBEERARE Fair value adjustments 452,088 2,920 455,008 — — — 455,008
A2008F3A31H At 31 March 2008 5,480,000 17,050 5,497,050 15,964 11,142 27,106 5,524,156
RE - Representil;g-): --------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
A Cost - - - 15,964 11,142 27,106 27,106
&8 —20084%F  Valuation — 2008 5,480,000 17,050 5,497,050 - - - 5,497,050
5,480,000 17,050 5,497,050 15,964 11,142 27,106 5,524,156

REHE ¢ Accumulated

depreciation:
R2007F4B18 At 1 April 2007 - - - 4,645 10,044 14,589 14,589
KEEHE Charge for the year — — — 530 465 995 995
BERER Written back on

disposals - - - - (744) (744) (r44)
A200843H31H At 31 March 2008 — — — 5,075 9,765 14,840 14,840
REFE Net book value:
A200843H31H At 31 March 2008 5,480,000 17,050 5,497,050 10,889 1,377 12,266 5,509,316
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12 BIEEE @) 12 Fixed Assets (continued)
) YHEHREFEMNZMUT : (c) The analysis of net book value of properties
is as follows:

T/ In Hong Kong
— REHEE — Long leases 33,547 35,853 9,046 9,467
—HHEE — Medium-term leases 5,891,283 5,498,472 5,891,283 5,498,472
FEBEBEING Freehold outside
IKAEREYE Hong Kong 254,918 293,491 - —
6,179,748 5,827,816 5,900,329 5,507,939
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12 Fixed Assets (Continued)

(d) Investment properties comprise property under redevelopment,
certain units of Good Luck Industrial Building and a piece of
freehold land held for an undetermined future purpose in
Malaysia. Other properties comprise an industrial, a commercial

and two residential properties in Hong Kong, and a golf and

recreational club in Malaysia.

The investment properties in Hong Kong were revalued at
31 March 2009 by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited, an
independent firm of professional valuers who have among their
staff Fellows of The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with
recent experience in the location and category of properties
being valued, on a market value basis in their existing states by
reference to comparable market transactions and where
appropriate on the basis of capitalisation of the net rental
income allowing for reversionary income potential. The piece of
freehold land in Malaysia was revalued on a market value basis

at 31 March 2009 by VPC Alliance (JB) Sdn. Bhd., an

independent firm of professional valuers in Malaysia.

(e) Other assets comprise furniture, fixtures, equipment and motor

vehicles.

(f) At the balance sheet date, the net book value of motor vehicles
held under finance leases of the Group was $Nil (2008: $Nil).
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12 EBEEE @)

86

() (9)

REENKEHERLREDE -
FUEEAAEPABERZNR
HMEz+F TAAREEESD
HERED ENMAKIEAIE
AT SLHEBEREED -
BE_ZTTNFR_TTNF=A
=t+—RIEFE - REXEHESHE
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NEEMEFAEEEMTEIN
EREMEEENMAEME  BE
DER/REME -

AEBERBIABENELHEE

12 Fixed Assets (Continued)

The Group leases out investment properties under operating
leases. The leases run on monthly basis or for an initial period
of two to ten years, with an option to renew the lease after that
date at which time all terms are renegotiated. The leases
include contingent rentals. No contingent rentals was
recognised as income in the income statement during the years

ended 31 March 2009 and 2008.

All properties held under operating leases that would otherwise
meet the definition of investment property are classified as

investment property.

The total future minimum lease payments under non-

HerEROEHEENRELHN cancellable operating leases are receivables as follows:
ORI
KEBEREAT
The Group and the Company
2009 2008
Fr T
$°000 $'000
1F R Within 1 year 1,308 35
1FBESF R After 1 year but within 5 years 48,902 —
5F & After 5 years 67,105 —
117,315 35
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12 EBEEE @)

(h)

BB B R ]

iz P4 55 2R 78 35 A E b ) R B &S
188 @ A400800 (= ZT N
% : 4014007 ) 22 % 7 AVPC
Alliance (JB) Sdn. Bhd. f£ — ZF hL4F
ZARENEERSETURER -

EERA

REBEABEXREEZR - BITEREMN
H% {8 /4 5,873,000,0007C (=T )\
4 : 5,480,000,0007T) M EEF W E
ERIRIR (2B E21) -

12 Fixed Assets (Continued)

(h) Reversal of impairment loss

The reversal of impairment loss on other properties located in

Malaysia amounting to $4,008,000 (2008: $4,014,000) was

recognised by reference to the valuation report prepared by

VPC Alliance (JB) Sdn. Bhd. in March 2009.

() Pledge of assets

At the balance sheet date, the property under redevelopment

with carrying value of $5,873,000,000 (2008: $5,480,000,000)

was pledged to secure the bank loan (see note 21).

13 RHB QRS 13 Interest in Subsidiaries
AT

The Company
2009 2008
T Tt
$'000 $000
FE EMAR D (A AN) Unlisted shares, at cost 31,084 31,084
B REEE Less: Impairment losses - —
31,084 31,084
JE W BT BB A R F A Amount due from a subsidiary 564,584 564,270
B REEE Less: Impairment losses (314,381) (274,636)
281,287 320,718

ERHMBARRELZRBEEM 28
I B EER -

Amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, interest-free and has no

fixed repayment terms.
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13 AMIB AT ISR @) 13 Interest in Subsidiaries continued)
TRIWHEANEBFEHNBARITIE The following list contains the particulars of all the subsidiaries of the
BEREIEEN  FFEANRNIE AT Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.
AR o

FribRE 2= tE 4l

Proportion of
ownership interest

AR EBEBRTRAE R DA B I 1B
NCIECE R R A FE AR BE DQEEE FTEXHB

Place of

incorporation  Particulars of issued held by held by
Name of company and operation  and paid up capital the Company subsidiary Principal activity
Associated International &8 2REREEI0TR M 100% — BEER

Resorts Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $10 each Investment holding

REBRRA Bt 200,000 & [ [ 8 17T B {0 100% - BEME
Diamond Town Limited Hong Kong 200,000 shares of $1 each Property holding
Dalwhinnie Limited BE 2k R EE 10T O 100% - REER

Hong Kong 2 shares of $10 each Investment holding
Austin Hills Land Sdn. Bhd. 55 %€ 75 35 21,000,002 % & & T (& - 100% % & # K

Malaysia HRAEITITEG Investment holding

21,000,002 shares of MYR1 each

Austin Hills Country BRAR 10,001,285 % & % 1 (& - 99.98% HEEVKLDRE
Resort Bhd. Malaysia BRI 1Tk KRS FT
R7s4fREBEREREEB Proprietor and
SRAETI TG operator
10,001,285 shares of MYR1 of a golf and
each and 754 preference recreational club

shares of MYR1 each

Austin Hills Country Resort ¥ il 3% 2% B PR T (B 37 3% 1 TR £ - 100% HESHMRIE
Pte. Ltd. Singapore 2 shares of SGD1 each Marketing agent

Austin Hills View Sdn. Bhd.  B5 75 25 MR T IREEF KA T T TG - 100% HHEYE
Malaysia 2 shares of MYR1 each Property holding

Austin Hills Vilas Sdn. Bhd. 553 7 25 2k IR EE SR 1 TR - 100% FAEME
Malaysia 2 shares of MYR1 each Property holding
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13

14

Interest in Subsidiaries continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2008, Austin Hills Country Resort
Bhd. (“AHCRB”) allotted various classes of preference shares of
Malaysian Ringgit 1 each to members of the golf and recreational club
in exchange for their paid-in membership fees deposits. These
shareholders have the same voting rights as the existing ordinary
shareholders and are entitled to use the facilities within the golf and

recreational club.

During the terms or at the expiry of the preference shares which
ranges from 5 to 30 years, the holders of these shares have the option
to convert their shares into ordinary shares, by paying the difference
between the consideration of allotment of ordinary and preference
shares or such other price as the Board of Directors of AHCRB may
decide which shall entitle the holders of such conversion golf
membership of the club in perpetuity subject to any adjustments in
relation to the issued price based on the instalment scheme offered by
AHCRB. Should the preference shares not be converted into ordinary

shares at the expiry date, they will be redeemed at par value.

The Directors consider that the dilution effect of the share issued on

the Group’s interest in AHCRB is not material.

Amounts Due to Subsidiaries

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
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15 FEWERFX » 5] E RFENTRK 15 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and
Prepayments
rE AT
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
Tr Tt Fr T
$°000 $000 $°000 $'000
& U BR 30 Accounts receivable 6,283 7,394 - —
B RIERERE Less: Allowance for bad and
(M 7E15(0)) doubtful debts (note 15(b)) (5,146) (5,635) — —
1,137 1,759 — —
HEASEANES Deposits and prepayments 8,443 2,124 7,995 1,436
9,580 3,883 7,995 1,436
(@ BRERZD AT (@) Ageing analysis
REEBEXRGEERD  BiEEEK Included in accounts receivable, deposits and prepayments are
BRI RENFZANFEKEE accounts receivable (net of allowance for bad and doubtful
(BB REEEE)NERER ST debts) with the following ageing analysis as of the balance
J(uN sheet date:
BE
The Group
2009 2008
T T
$°000 $'000
K18 B Current 378 416
pap=i R A R P! Less than 1 month past due 72 91
BHI1 =318 A 1 to 3 months past due 181 278
EHfEE B 3(E A More than 3 months but less than
B 1218 A 12 months past due 506 974
EEHeRE Amounts past due 759 1,343
1,137 1,759
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15 FEWWEREF » 5T & RFENF 15 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and
(& Prepayments continued)
(@) BRERDHT (&) (a) Ageing analysis (Continued)
SRR BLSEBENRRI —RKRE Debts are generally due after 60 days in respect of golf and
HEEZHBOXKEIE MY recreational club operation and within 14 days in respect of
¥HEEBNRARUERERE property leasing from the date of billing. Further details on the
MBEF14RANENE - REBEEHEER Group’s credit policy are set out in note 25(a).
H A FF 1B 7 A M 5E25(0) ©
(b) FEUWERFURE (b) Impairment of accounts receivable
FARZERETEHGEHOT - The movement in the specific allowance for bad and doubtful
debts during the year is as follows:
rEEH
The Group
2009 2008
o Fr
$°000 $'000
72008,/2007F 4 A1H At 1 April 2008/2007 5,635 5,194
BEERREEIE Impairment losses recognised 283 1,086
B R85 AT Y Bl EgE Uncollectible amounts written off ®) (1,040)
EHZRE Exchange differences (764) 395
M3HA31H At 31 March 5,146 5,635

RZZEZNF=ZRA=+—8"
AEBHEKERFE R EH
FI T 7= R B B Bk 3k 435,233,000 7T
(ZZTZT)\4F : 5781,0007T) ° B
BEFHITER R Ao ERERER
AUE - FAit BRI RERRE
TE R A5,146000T (ZEENF -
5,635,0007T ) °

At 31 March 2009, the Group’s accounts receivable of
$5,233,000 (2008: $5,781,000) were individually determined to
be impaired. Management assessed that only a portion of the
receivables is expected to be recovered. Consequently, specific
allowance for bad and doubtful debts of $5,146,000 (2008:
$5,635,000) was recognised.
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15 BUWEIRR ~ AT £ KB

92

(%)

278 IR 15 B FE W BR X
181 31 % 2 4838 0 9 A R ML A0 FE iR

(© ()

15 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and
Prepayments continued)

Accounts receivable that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of accounts receivable that are neither

IRIABREE DT T - individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are as
follows:
KEE

The Group
2009 2008
I Tz
$°000 $'000
RAHZOL B RE Neither past due nor impaired 378 416
w E D18 A Less than 1 month past due 72 91
#HR1 =318 A 1 to 3 months past due 181 278

60 BB B 3 & A More than 3 months but less than

BL 1218 A 12 months past due 419 828
672 1,197
1,050 1,613

A 8 A 508 B ORUE B JE WR RS
REHREHREHENERER
25 o of default.
SEHERAERENERERRE
REAREEEG R IFEBERN —
BELEPF BRERR  BEUNU
TR ARNEEERUEERN
B MmA S RDEAR AR 2B
B - B LASEZR B L ETHER BB 64 -

recoverable.

Associated International Hotels Limited SlEEBESEIEAR AT

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a

wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant change in

credit quality and the balances are still considered fully



16 EIRHFRITER 16 Pledged Bank Deposits

NRZEZAF=FA=1+—8 " $H£1TFX As at 31 March 2009, bank deposits were pledged to a designated
EAEER WER -—FKE\ERTHR bank to secure the bank loan (see note 21).

TER(2HME21) °

17 BERBELEEY 17 Cash and Cash Equivalents
& AT

The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
Fx T Fr T
$’000 $000 $°000 $'000
RITEHER Deposits with banks 441,824 471,049 441,139 469,741
RITFRERS Cash at bank and in hand 3,062 3,096 1,156 375
444,886 474,145 442,295 470,116

Annual Report 08-09 &£ 93



B 7% ¥R 3= B & E
Notes to the Financial Statements

(LB 5 R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

18 FE{TBRF - HibFEN R K& ME 18 Accounts Payable, Other Payables and

sTEH Accruals
B E ZE R E IR B 5 843,040,000 7T All of the accounts payable, other payables and accruals except for
(ZZZE )\ :2,7280007T) 9) » Fr A FEFS $43,040,000 (2008: $2,728,000), mainly represented retention monies
B EhEN R R ESHE BTN — payable, are expected to be settled within one year.
FRFN
REEABREER BREEERNE Included in accounts payable, other payables and accruals are
A HEMENAEETER AR ERE accounts payable with the following ageing analysis as of the balance
REBRE T sheet date:
rE AN
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
T T T T
$°000 $'000 $°000 $'000
118 A NS ZEERA  Due within 1 month or on
fRs 1] H demand 350 376 - —
118 A 1% 1E3{8 3R  Due after 1 month but within
i 3 months 495 619 - —
3B A%EBMEAR  Due after 3 months but within
ZI| B 6 months 253 298 - —
61E A%1812/8 AR  Due after 6 months but within
EI| 5 12 months - 7 — _
121 7 1% 2 84 Due after 12 months 28 290 - —
FETER AR KR Total accounts payable 1,126 1,590 - —
EETEMN Accruals and retention monies
JEETEA K payable for redevelopment
JEHR B R work 195,873 56,678 195,873 56,678
Hh FE T R Other payables and
fEETE A accruals 9,019 8,794 2,295 1,073
206,018 67,062 198,168 57,751
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19 EWET =

BT ERBEEREREERSE
WM TIER—FRBEN -

20 REIRE S %EME

19 Deposits Received

Deposits received represent mainly rental deposits and membership

deposits and are not expected to be settled within one year.

20 Provision for Long Service Payments

AEERAEAF

The Group and

the Company

T

$°000

20084 A1 H At 1 April 2008 1,282
KEEFHRER Provision made for the year 492
200943 A31 H At 31 March 2009 1,774

REBEFECRBIEN)  KNEBARK L
EREFHIUNENE TREBHEGE - &
REBRTUAFL —FENR - BNHE
BREBEISANTFERREFH
BERAKBERKGTEHABAEEF L
MERERFTE - REBEXLEREMT
MEEERTARFEBOBNK -

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is obliged
to make lump sum payments on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances to employees who have completed at least five years
of service with the Group. The amount payable is dependent on the
employees’ final salary and years of service, and is reduced by
entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement plan that is
attributable to contributions made by the Group. The Group does not

set aside any assets to fund any remaining obligations.
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21

96

RITER—FEA

21 Bank Loan — Secured

NR_ETZNF=F=+—8" EX At 31 March 2009, the bank loan was repayable as follows:
BEREIAT -
AEBRAADT
The Group and the Company
2009 2008
T T
$°000 $°'000
2F1BESF A After 2 years but within 5 years | 568,000 | 130,000

RZZEEXF+AZ+B AQAHE
— 4R 77 57 32 — 15 & #£1,200,000,000 7T
WREE  ZRITHREREN—HERE
MsE12eman — T AF=A=1+—
A 4 {85,873,000000 ;L ( = & T J\ F :
5480,000000 7T ) R ERE R WX M F —
E Al R ERTIEREERD
ETEENZE - FIRCHEHRIERK
MR -_ZBEZHF=ZA=+—H0 B
B 18 B %8 3E568,000000 T ( Z B ZE N\
4 : 130,000,0007T) °

=

AARMRITREREETEARAN
ETHAEEABRLETAMAM R
BITEDRA WEAEBERAE-—ENR
ERFMARBRRZERS  BIA

RBANBEEZCRINEER - AR
AeETHERRAENAEERA -
RZZBZAF=ZA=+—B AR
TEERTMNEEREEFMENR
(ZZZNEFE \) -

al
fig

On 20 October 2006, the Company entered into a facility agreement
with a bank for banking facilities of up to $1,200,000,000. The
banking facilities were secured by a debenture incorporating a first
fixed legal charge over the property under redevelopment referred to
in note 12(a) with an aggregate value of $5,873,000,000 as at
31 March 2009 (2008: $5,480,000,000) and a first floating charge
over certain assets placed on or used in the redevelopment. The
facilities were utilised to the extent of $568,000,000 as at 31 March
2009 (2008: $130,000,000).

The Company’s banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment of
covenants relating to certain of the Company’s consolidated balance
sheet ratios and maintenance of capital at certain required levels. If
the Company were to breach the covenants the drawn down facilities
would become payable on demand. The Company regularly monitors
its compliance with these covenants. As at 31 March 2009, none of
the covenants relating to drawn down facilities had been breached
(2008: $Nil).
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22 mhERERE

22 Obligations under Finance Leases

RZEZNF=ZA=+—H ' AEEHN At 31 March 2009, the Group had obligations under finance leases
RMERERENERBUOT repayable as follows:
2009 2008

REHEE REEE RIEHEE REMEE
ARERE (RELAR XERE MRBEEH

Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
T T T T
$°000 $°000 $'000 $'000
1F A Within 1 year 73 74 140 147
1F®BE2FNRN After 1 year but within 2 years — — 70 72
73 74 210 219

B B A B

Less: Total future interest

BB expenses 0] )
AERENRE Present value of lease obligations 73 210

23 BB HE

23 Government Lease Premiums Payable

AEERAEAF
The Group and the Company

2009 2008

F T Ft

$°000 $'000

& BUT H(E Government lease premiums payable 2,367 2,406

W BIEREMR - B Less: Amount due within one year included

FER KR FERTE A in accounts payable, other payables

1FRNENBFIE and accruals (40) 39)

2,327 2,367

FEMBFHENE IR AEEREEI Interest on government lease premiums payable is chargeable at a

EFMESEEE o

fixed rate of 5% per annum on the outstanding balance.
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24 BARREE

98

24 Capital and Reserves

REH (@) The Group
BIE*
REA Eff#E NERE ELRE REER BRER
Hotel
properties
Share revaluation  Exchange Capital  Retained Total
capital reserve reserve reserve earnings equity
fx Ffz Fx ¥z Fx  F=n
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
R2007 54 A1H At 1 April 2007 360,000 1,453,045 3,522 135,366 2,984,092 4,936,025
oy NEIE: S Premium in respect of
BEBRTFELR preference shares
MR FTE & issued to preference
#3518 shareholders of
a subsidiary - — - 78 — 78
HEBINFERAT  Exchange differences
MBBREkMEE on translation of
HERZ5 financial statements of
overseas subsidiaries — — 10,082 10,251 - 20,333
T = B K P Changes in deferred
EERET tax resulting from
HIEE decrease in tax rate - 17,613 - - - 17,613
RERRF Profit for the year - - - — 399436 399,436
R2008F3A31H At 31 March 2008 360,000 1,470,658 13,604 145,695 3,383,528 5,373,485
R200854 A 1H At 1 April 2008 360,000 1,470,658 13,604 145,695 3,383,528 5,373,485
BEBINFEAT  Exchange differences
BBEREMEAL on translation of
HER Z# financial statements of
overseas subsidiaries - - (18,771) (19,133) - (37,904)
AERER Loss for the year - - - - (174882) (174,882
A2009%63H31H At 31 March 2009 360,000 1,470,658 (5,167) 126,562 3,208,646 5,160,699
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24 BEXRKFEE @

24 Capital and Reserves (Continued)

(b) AT (b) The Company
B JE ¥ 2
[ BEfRE R B8 325 Fl B
Hotel
properties
Share revaluation Retained
capital reserve earnings Total
Fx Frx T T
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
FR2007F4 A1 H At 1 April 2007 360,000 1,453,045 3,106,775 4,919,820
T 2R B AR P Changes in deferred
EEREL tax resulting from
Rk decrease in tax rate — 17,613 — 17,613
AN E i A Profit for the year - - 420,744 420,744
200843 A31H At 31 March 2008 360,000 1,470,658 3,527,519 5,358,177
R2008F 4 A1H At 1 April 2008 360,000 1,470,658 3,527,519 5,358,177
KEEEIE Loss for the year - - (211,999) (211,999)
R2009F 3 A31H At 31 March 2009 360,000 1,470,658 3,315,520 5,146,178
© B’ (c) Share capital
2009 2008
T Tt
$°000 $°'000
EIE Authorised:
400,000,000 & 78 f% 400,000,000 ordinary shares
IR EE1 T of $1 each 400,000 400,000
ERTRAR: Issued and fully paid:
360,000,000 & 78 i% 360,000,000 ordinary shares
fREE T of $1 each 360,000 360,000
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24 ERK @B @

(©)
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24 Capital and Reserves (Continued)

(©

Share capital (Continued)

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends
as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per
share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank

equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

Nature and purpose of reserves

The hotel properties revaluation reserve represents revaluation
surpluses of hotel recognised in prior years. The hotel has now
been demolished and the site is presently under redevelopment
into iISQUARE. Upon the retirement or disposal of the
properties, any related revaluation surplus is transferred from
the hotel properties revaluation reserve to retained earnings.

The reserve is non-distributable.

The exchange reserve has been set up and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies adopted for foreign
currency differences arising from the translation of the financial

statements of foreign operations in note 1(q).

The capital reserve represents the net increase in the Group’s
share of the undistributable reserve in a subsidiary pursuant to
the issuance of various classes of preference shares by a

subsidiary to preference shareholders.

Distributability of reserves

At 31 March 2009, the aggregate amount of reserves available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company was

$1,192,853,000 (2008: $1,253,780,000).
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24 Capital and Reserves (Continued)

()

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for equity shareholders
and benefit for other stakeholders, by redeveloping and leasing
properties, and pricing services commensurately with the level

of risk and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure
to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder returns
that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions. The Group’s overall strategy
remained unchanged during the years ended 31 March 2009
and 2008.

The Group monitors its capital structure by reviewing its gearing
ratio and cash flow requirements, taking into account its future
financial obligations and commitments. For this purpose, the
Group defines gearing ratio as total bank loan over total equity
as shown in the consolidated balance sheet. As at 31 March
2009, the Group’s gearing ratio was 11.0% (2008: 2.4%) with
total bank loan exceeding bank deposits and cash of
$120,888,000 (2008: bank deposits and cash exceeding total
bank loan of $344,145,000).
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25 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in

the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to manage

these risks are described below.

(@ Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to accounts
receivable. Management has a credit policy in place and the

exposures to this credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of accounts receivable, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s past history
of making payments when due and current ability to pay, and
take into account information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Debts are generally due after 60 days in
respect of golf and recreational club operation and within
14 days in respect of property leasing from the date of billing.
Accounts for members of the golf and recreational club with
balances that are 90 days past due are suspended and such
action will be taken against defaulting members as may be
appropriate. For debtors of property leasing, legal action will be
taken against past due debtors whenever the situation is
appropriate. The Group obtains deposits from customers (see

note 19) as collateral over accounts receivable.
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25 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values
(Continued)

@

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The
maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of any
collateral held is represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the balance sheet after deducting any
impairment allowance. The Group does not provide any
guarantees which would expose the Group or the Company to

credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from accounts receivable are set

out in note 15.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash and an adequate amount of committed banking facilities

to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

Annual Report 08-09 &£ 103



B 7% ¥R 3= B & E
Notes to the Financial Statements

(LB 5 R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

25 BIEEBEERAAEHE 25 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(&) (Continued)

b) RBELREE @ (b) Liquidity risk (Continued)
TRANWAEEBRANRAR ZIENTE The following table details the remaining contractual maturities
CTHEBEREEAGRAEEANMN at the balance sheet date of the Group’s and the Company’s
BMREKEEIFIE  ZEREERELH non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based on
ABERERE(BEAEGHF X contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
HIENEEABEREEHNE BT payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
E(MBZRER)FENMNENT) & based on rates current at the balance sheet date) and the
REBMARBEHZT I HEMm earliest date the Group and the Company can be required to
e pay:
PN The Group

2009
BE ANAFE 15/
8ff%k  HERE NEE  #81F  #B2fF

RHEE B BAR EoR2F BIRFE  EBBSF
Balance Total More than ~ More than
sheet  contractual Within ~ 1yearbut 2 years but

carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than lessthan ~ More than

amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5years 5years
Tr Tr Tr Tr Fr Fr
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
FEfTERAR - Accounts payable,
HittEN R R other payables
BB A and accruals 206,018 206,018 162,978 43,016 - 24
B2 Deposits received 5,335 5,335 3,147 6 217 1,905
REHEEE Finance lease liabilties 73 74 74 - - _
FITEF —FEE  Bankloan — secured 568,000 579,635 4,714 4,714 570,207 -
BN E Government lease
premiums payable 2,327 4,449 159 159 477 3,654
EthirBaE Other financial liabilities 2 2 - - 1 1
781,755 795,513 171,072 47,895 570,962 5,584
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25 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values
(Continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The Group (Continued)

FARES Accounts payable,
H R R K other payables

et E A and accruals 67,062 67,062 64,334 261 2,458 9
BT & Deposits received 5,022 5,022 3,867 - - 1,155
BMEMEAR Finance lease liabilities 210 219 147 72 - -
PITEFH —BHE  Bankloan — secured 130,000 143,024 4,108 4,108 134,808 -

FER B (B Government lease
premiums payable 2,367 4,608 159 159 477 3,813
Hiby B ak Other financial liabilities 2 2 - - - 2
204,663 219,937 72,615 4,600 137,743 4979
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25

BHRERBEERAAEBE

25 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(&) (Continued)
b) REESLRER @) (b) Liquidity risk (Continued)
PIN/NE] The Company
2009
BE GHRFR 1R
B8R RERE REE BAE1FE  BB2E
fREE X BAB BOR2F ELRE  BBSE
Balance Total More than ~ More than
sheet  contractual Within ~ 1yearbut 2 years but
carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than lessthan ~ More than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5years 5years
Tr Tr Tr T T T
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
FARES Accounts payable,
HttEEH & other payables
e & and accruals 198,168 198,168 155,156 43,012 - -
BT Deposits received 2,274 2,274 86 6 217 1,905
JERMEARZE  Amountsdueto
subsidiaries 21,290 21,290 21,290 - - -
FITEF —FEE  Bankloan — secured 568,000 579,635 4,714 4,714 570,207 -
FER B B Government lease
premiums payable 2,327 4,449 159 159 477 3,654
792,059 805,816 181,405 47,891 570,961 5,559
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(Continued)

(b)

The Company (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

25 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

FARES Accounts payable,
H R R K other payables
[EEER and acoruals 57,751 57,751 55,313 - 2,438 -
EHETE Deposits received 1,245 1,245 90 - - 1,155
[EFRHIBARZIE  Amounts dueto
subsidiaries 20,109 20,109 20,109 — — —
BITER—HEA Bank loan — secured 130,000 143,024 4,108 4,108 134,808 -
FEF T B Government lease
premiums payable 2,367 4,608 159 159 477 3,813
211,472 226,737 79,779 4,267 137,728 4,968
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25 BIEEBEERAAEHE 25 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(&) (Continued)
) FIZE= B (c) Interest rate risk
AEEMMERBEZRE KHEE The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from long-term
E - ZEEEFASEAEAZRS borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the
MEFEERER AEBETREER Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group’s interest rate
AR B a0T() Pt profile as monitored by management is set out in (i) below.
0  FI=EBR ()  Interest rate profile
TERFIREEBBEREE The following table details the interest rate profile of the
AASERARQREEF Group’s and the Company’s borrowings at the balance
RPN sheet date:
rEE ¥ NN
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
BRRAIE &R FI = BRI &R FI =
Effective Effective Effective Effective
interest interest interest interest
rate T rate Tt rate T rate Tt
% $°000 % $'000 % $°000 % $'000
EEEE Fixed rate
borrowings:
FEHEA®E  Financelease
liabilities 2.35 73 2.35 210 - — — —
JEERATH/E  Government lease
premiums payable 5.00 2,327 5.00 2,367 5.00 2,327 5.00 2,367
2,400 2,577 2,327 2,367
FEREE: Variable rate
borrowings:
RITER Bank loan
— BHEM — secured 0.83 568,000 3.16 130,000 0.83 568,000 3.16 130,000
BEEwmEE Total borrowings 570,400 132,577 570,327 132,367
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25 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(Continued)

()

Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 March 2009, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 25 (2008: 50) basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would have
decreased/increased the Group’s profit after tax and
retained profits by approximately $1,420,000 (2008:
$650,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained
profits) that would arise assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the balance sheet date. In
respect of the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk
arising from floating rate non-derivative instruments held
by the Group at the balance sheet date, the impact on
the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) is
estimated as an annualised impact on interest expense
of such a change in interest rates. The analysis is

performed on the same basis for 2008.
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25 BIEEBEERAAEHE 25 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(&) (Continued)
@) IMER B (d) Currency risk

INERBECERERNEENEE Foreign currency risk arises when recognised assets and

WIHNAEEHN N E BT ER liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the Group’s

EA R AEEMNIINERKRES functional currency. The Group does not hedge its financial

REETEBRFR Bt - A% assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies in the

WEH P AIINEAENSREE K view that the Group’s foreign currency risk exposure primarily

=R refers to the fixed deposits denominated in United States

Dollars (“USD”).

() HNMER B E ()  Exposure to currency risk
TRFINAEERARAR The following table details the Group’s and the
EEBBEREEHRTEEN Company’s exposure at the balance sheet date to
ENFENEEREEME currency risk arising from recognised assets
FEIMNER B denominated in USD:

KEBMREAF
The Group and the Company
2009 2008
EnT ErxfT
USD’000 USD’000
FEUERR - 5] & Accounts receivable, deposits
ESEEREN and prepayments 27 77
HWeERIREZEEY Cash and cash equivalents 55,513 59,150
B R AR FE Overall net exposure 55,540 59,227
iy BWREDN (i) Sensitivity analysis
AR BEEE TEN  KNE In the light of the Hong Kong dollar peg, the foreign
NN I el S =] currency risk associated with the USD exposure is not
RS RKRERY T E expected to be material to the Group and the Company.
RKe @A RZZEZNFM Therefore, no sensitivity analysis is performed in 2009
TER) N\FUBETHRE and 2008.
ba i
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26

Financial Risk Management and Fair Values
(Continued)

(e) Fair values

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially

different from their fair values as at 31 March 2009 and 2008.

Employee Retirement Benefits

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administrated by independent trustees.
Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
$20,000. In addition to the mandatory contribution, the Group makes
voluntary contribution at 5% of the employees’ monthly relevant
income in excess of $20,000, subject to a maximum monthly income
of $30,000. Contributions to the plan vest immediately. The staff costs
in respect of staff employed by DTZ for building and property
management of iISQUARE are reflected in the Group’s income

statement.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Malaysia and Singapore
are members of the Employee Provident Fund and the Central
Provident Fund (the “funds”) operated by the respective local
government. The relevant subsidiaries are required to contribute to the
funds at rates ranging from 7.5% to 14.5% based on the salaries of
the employees. The only obligation of the Group to the above funds is

the required contributions at the applicable rate.

During the year, no forfeited contributions (2008: $51,000) was utilised
to reduce the contributions payable for the year. No unutilised forfeited
contributions had yet to be applied by the Group at 31 March 2009
and 2008.
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27 EIE 27 Commitments

@) —EENF=RA=1t—8BKEN (a)  Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2009 not

X AR 7E B 75 5 R 70 B 5 19 8 A& provided for in the financial statements were as follows:
EMT
EEERAEAF
The Group and the Company

2009 2008

T Tz

$°000 $'000

BE4 Contracted for | 512,357 1,071,999

RZZEZAF=A=+—8" R At 31 March 2009, the estimated cost of construction in
. BE T 2 iE63 5% (N BE (N b ER 7425 respect of the development of ISQUARE on the site located at
FONEERESEREZIFENE No. 63 Nathan Road, Kowloon (Kowloon Inland Lot No. 7425)
ERAERMETL13ET - is around $1.3 billion.

b RZZEZNAF=A=+—8 ' RE (b) At 31 March 2009, the total future minimum lease payments
TR B MELEHEREHEE under non-cancellable operating leases of properties are
NHRERAENRTBELRHNT : payable as follows:

rEME VNN
The Group The Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
Fr T Fr T
$°000 $'000 $°000 $'000
1ER Within 1 year 1,250 — 1,370 500
151 B5FR After 1 year but
within 5 years 361 - 361 -
1,611 — 1,731 500
AATl A KEETHEREBYER X The Company is the lessee in respect of properties held under
A -EEHEAPME - 578 operating leases. The leases run for a period of two years.
ETBREXEHRESE - None of the leases includes contingent rentals.
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29

Contingent Liabilities

In November 2007, an overseas subsidiary filed a claim in court
against a subscriber of the golf club membership in Malaysia for the
payment of approximately $1.3 million being the remaining outstanding
balance for certain preference shares of the subsidiary. However, the
subscriber disputed the claim and filed a counterclaim of
approximately $4.7 million on 28 January 2008 on the alleged grounds

that the subscriber had suffered loss of reputation and other losses.

In August 2008, the overseas subsidiary and the subscriber agreed to
settle by withdrawing their respective claims against each other and a
notice of discontinuance for this purpose was filed in court. The case
was closed upon the judge striking out the above claims in December
2008. Accordingly, the Directors are of the opinion that no provision

for the counterclaim is necessary.

Immediate Parent and Ultimate Controlling
Party

At 31 March 2009, the Directors consider the immediate parent and
ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Tian Teck Land Limited
and Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited respectively, both of
which are incorporated in Hong Kong. The immediate parent
produces financial statements available for public use and the ultimate
controlling party does not produce financial statements available for

public use.
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30 Possible Impact of Amendments, New
Standards and Interpretations Issued but
not yet effective for the Year Ended
31 March 2009

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a number of amendments, new standards and interpretations
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2009 and

which have not been adopted in these financial statements.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments, new standards and new interpretations
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it has
concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant

impact on the Group’s results of operations and financial position.

In addition, the following developments may result in new or amended

presentation and disclosures in the financial statements:

EUTHEHRZ#E
RmNETHBEER
Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after

(BB BHmELD)FESR KgEnE 20091 A1H
HKFRS 8 Operating segments 1 January 2009
(BHEGHERD)E15% (KEFT) B mEs R 275 200941 A1H
HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of financial statements 1 January 2009
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hFEMBHE
Five Year Financial Summary

(LB 5)R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

¥E Results
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
Tt Tt Tt Tt T
$’000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
=20 Turnover 439,775 344,931 18,585 17,792 16,836

SRR (EE) Profit/(loss) from operations

(35) (Note) 325,711 345,323 640,164 448,255 | (210,024)
A& Bk AN Finance costs (157) (166) 215) (141) (138)
BRBATER, (BE)  Profit/(loss) before taxation 325,554 345,157 639,949 448,114 | (210,162
Frig i Income tax (52,652) (58,090)  (109,500) (48,678) 35,280

AEERBRRES Profit/(loss) for the year
REE®A attributable to equity
(E8B) shareholders of the Company 272,902 287,067 530,449 399,436 (174,882)
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Five Year Financial Summary

(LB 5 R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

EEREE Assets and Liabilities
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
Tt Tt Ft Tt Fr
$000 $000 $'000 $000 $°000
EEE&E Fixed assets 4,214,641 4,492,349 5219,906 5,831,769 | 6,182,474
HuBEHERE,/ Other investments in
At EER securities/available-for-sale
#FFH () equity securities (Note) 7,440 7,794 — — -
BEREBIREE Deferred tax assets 122 116 109 97 91
mBEEFE Net current assets 387,989 480,641 418,338 404,713 243,627

4,610,192 4,980,900 5,638,353 6,236,579 | 6,426,192

RITER — BEME Bank loans — secured — — — (130,000) | (568,000)
&SP BT HE (S Government lease
premiums payable (2,478) (2,443) (2,4006) (2,367) (2,327)
BhETH B AR Obligations under finance leases 841) (575) (188) (70) -
BB IBE & Deferred tax liabilities (536,046)  (590,515)  (699,732)  (730,655)| (695,164)
HiM s aE Other financial liabilities © 0 @) © ©
EEFE NET ASSETS 4,070,826 4,387,366 4,936,025 5,373,485 | 5,160,699
& 7 Share capital 360,000 360,000 360,000 360,000 360,000
% (51) Reserves (Note) 3,710,826 4,027,366 4,576,025 5,013,485 | 4,800,699
ERBRH TOTAL EQUITY 4,070,826 4,387,366 4,936,025 5,373,485 | 5,160,699
T ANACEBASER)FENFETIAABED Note: In order to comply with Amendment to HKAS 39, The fair value option, the
ZE|INHRT AERH-_ETETNFMWA—B# Group changed its accounting policy for investments in equity securities with
B TEBERELFRENSTHE - RigE®E effect from 1 April 2006. In accordance with the transitional provisions of the
ERHBEEMHEY Bt HENEED KB standard, the changes in accounting policy were adopted retrospectively but the
PERA BEYEERN_ZTRAFNA—HHAQ opening balance of the fair value reserve as at 1 April 2005 was not restated.
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